
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 
 

 Monday, June 9, 2014 at 2:00 P.M. 
1195 Third Street, Third Floor, Napa, Calif. 94559 

 

 
 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call  
 
 
 
 

Michael Haley 
Director, Ward Three 

 

 
  

General Information 
 

Agenda items will generally be considered in the order indicated below, except for Set Matters, which will be considered at the time 
indicated. Agenda items may from time to time be taken out of order at the discretion of the President. 
 
The meeting room is wheelchair accessible. Assistive listening devices and interpreters are available through the District Secretary. 
Requests for disability related modifications or accommodations, aids, or services may be made to the Secretary's office no less than 
than 48 hours prior to the meeting date by contacting 707.259.8603. 
 
Any member of the audience desiring to address the District on a matter on the Agenda, please proceed to the rostrum and, after 
receiving recognition from the President, give your name, address, and your comments or questions. In order that all interested parties 
have an opportunity to speak, please be brief and limit you comments to the specific subject under discussion. Time limitations shall be 
at the discretion of the President. 
 
State law requires agency officers (Directors and Officers) to disclose, and then be disqualified from participation in, any proceeding 
involving a license, permit, or other entitlement for use, if the officer has received from any participant in the proceeding an amount 
exceeding $250 within the prior 12 month period. State law also requires any participant in a proceeding to disclose on the record any 
such contributions to an agency officer.  
 
All materials relating to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Directors which are provided to a 
majority or all of the members of the Board by Board members, staff or the public within 72 hours of but prior to the meeting will be 
available for public inspection, on and after at the time of such distribution, in the NCRPOSD Office at 1195 Third Street, Suite 210, 
Napa, California 94559, Monday through Friday, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 4:30 p.m., except for County holidays. Materials 
distributed to a majority or all of the members of the Board at the meeting will be available for public inspection at the public meeting if 
prepared by the members of the Board or County staff and after the public meeting if prepared by some other person. Availability of 
materials related to agenda items for public inspection does not include materials which are exempt from public disclosure under 
Government Code §§6253.5, 6254, 6254.3, 6254.7, 6254.15, 6254.16, or 6254.22. 
 
 
 
 

 

 

  

  

Karen Turjanis 
Director, Ward One 

Tony Norris 
Director, Ward Two 

 

 
  

Dave Finigan 
Director, Ward Four 

 

 
  

Barry Christian 
Director, Ward Five 

 

 
  

1195 Third Street, Second Floor, Napa, Calif. 94559 
telephone: 707.299.1335  facsimile: 707.299.4285  web: www.NapaOutdoors.org  

1



2. Public Comment 
In this time period, anyone may address the Board of Directors regarding any subject over which the Board has 
jurisdiction but which is not on today’s posted agenda. In order to provide all interested parties an opportunity to speak, 
time limitations shall be at the discretion of the President. As required by Government Code, no action or discussion will 
be undertaken on any item raised during this Public Comment period. 

 
3. Set Matters 

 
2:00 pm    Public Hearing.  Consideration and potential approval of District budget for FY 

2014-15. 
 

2:30 pm    Public Hearing.  Consideration and potential approval of a $2,000 grant 
to Tuleyome to support the construction of the Lake Berryessa North 
Shore Trail and adoption of the Lake Berryessa North Shore Trail 
CEQA Negative Declaration. 

 
4. Administrative Items 

a. Consideration and potential approval of Minutes of the Board of Directors regular 
meeting of May 12, 2014. 

b. Receipt of monthly report for Bothe-Napa Valley State Park and the Bale Grist Mill 
State Historic Park.   

c. Consideration and potential authorization for General Manager to submit a proposal 
to take on operation of Robert Louis Stevenson State Park. 

d. Consideration and potential approval of letter to the Parks Forward Commission 
commenting on their draft report of April 23, 2014. 

e. Update on formation of the Park and Open Space District Advisory Committee, and 
extension of time to receive nominations. 

f. Receipt of report on expenditures, encumbrances, donations, and grants approved 
by District staff. 

g. Review of the District Projects Status.  
 
5. Announcements by Board and Staff 

In this time period, members of the Board of Directors and staff will announce meetings, events, 
and other matters of interest. No action will be taken by the Board on any announcements. 

   
6. Agenda Planning 

In this time period, members of the Board of Directors and staff will discuss matters for possible 
consideration at future meetings. Other than to determine whether and when such matters should be 
agendized, no action will be taken by the Board on these items unless specifically noted otherwise.  
 
Next Board Meetings:    Regular Board Meeting of July 14, 2014  
 

7. Adjournment 

2



 
 
 
 
STAFF REPORT 
 
Date:    June 9, 2014 
Agenda Item: 3.a 
Subject: Adoption of District budget and work program for FY 2014-15 
 
Recommendation 
 

1. Receive staff report 
2. Open the public hearing 
3. Receive Public Comment 
4. Close Public Hearing 
5. Discussion 
6. Find that this action is not a project for purposes of the California Environmental 

Quality Act  
7. Adopt the proposed budget and Work Program for FY 2014-15 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION  
 
This is not a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act as defined by the State 
CEQA Guidelines 

 
Background 
 
The Board at its May 12, 2014 meeting authorized release of the draft budget for the coming fiscal 
year for public comment.  Notice of the availability of the draft budget was published in the Napa 
Register on May 14, 2014.  The draft budget was also posted on the District’s web page at the same 
time.  No public comments on the draft budget have been received as of the preparation of this 
report. 
 
Highlights of the proposed budget include: 
 

• Since release of the draft budget, staff has made some additional changes in format to 
improve readability.  Also, some of the numbers have been changed based on new 
information. 

• The beginning fund balance reflects the fact that the District receives the County Special 
Projects Grant (from the County Transient Occupancy Tax) as well as some other revenues 
in advance of when they are used. Within the current year budget, some revenues are 
restricted to a specific park or trail; unrestricted revenues are then allocated to the various 
projects based on projected need in such a way that the projected ending fund balance is 
zero, except for three circumstances.  First, when there are also restricted funds associated 

3



with the project (eg, the $50,000 Mead Foundation grant for Camp Berryessa, the $5,000 
easement dispute settlement for Putah Creek, and all net State Park revenues), these 
restricted funds show up in the Fund Balance.  The second is when there insufficient current 
year discretionary revenues to cover all expenses, the Fund Balance must be drawn upon  
(eg, $50,371 for Moore Creek).  Finally, the General Fund will always have a positive Fund 
Balance, because at the end of the year, all unexpended discretionary revenues are placed in 
the General Fund to be available for reallocation the following year.   

• The District began the current fiscal year (FY 2013-14) with a fund balance of $1,114,400; 
assuming the boundary fence at Moore Creek is not complete this fiscal year, the fund 
balance at the end of FY 2013-14 is projected to increase by about $65,000.  If the fencing 
project is completed by June 30, the fund balance for the current fiscal year will decrease 
approximately $135,000 from what is shown if the 9-month budget projection, and the 
expenditures for next fiscal year will decrease by approximately $200,000.  The proposed 
budget for the next fiscal year (FY 2014-15) is projected to draw $392,000 from the fund 
balance, leaving approximately $244,000 in the unrestricted fund balance at the end of FY 
2014-15.  This is a reasonable and prudent level to cover cash flow and contingencies.   

• By the end of the current five-year grant agreement with the County (in 2017), all County 
grant funds that have not been expended must be returned to the County, unless a new 
grant agreement has been approved. 

• Since the District by law must always have a positive fund balance, the proposed budget 
uses conservative assumptions; the board will be asked to revisit the budget this fall 
(probably in October) once we know the exact fund balance as of July 1, 2014, and once we 
know election costs. 

• Election costs are estimated at $65,000.  This assumes two Wards will have competitive 
races.  In the past, most Ward seats have only had one candidate file, which means there 
were only minimal charges to the District from the County Registrar of Voters.  A 
competitive race is presumed to cost about $32,500 each, based on the District’s last 
competitive race.  Actual costs are a function of how many other items are on the ballot. 

• Other than the timing of the boundary fence (which is projected to not be complete until 
July of this year, work at Moore Creek Park (including Lake Hennessey) is projected to drop 
substantially next year.  The budget assumes construction of approximately two miles of 
new trail in the Lake Hennessey Unit, as well as routine maintenance and operation 
expenses. 

• The proposed budget for the Oat Hill Mine Trail covers routine maintenance plus limited 
erosion control work. 

• The Napa River and Bay Trail assumes the District will match $120,000 in grant funds from 
the San Francisco Bay Trail Project with $160,800 in District funds to construct Sections 7&8 
(Soscol Ferry Road to Napa Pipe) as well as perform planning and maintenance work on 
other section of the trail.  No funding is budgeted for the railroad crossing and trail 
proposed north of Green Island Road and west of the airport. 

• Construction of Camp Berryessa is the major construction project for the coming year. For 
now, the budget proposes use of $50,000 from a grant previously received by the District for 
this purpose (and thus part of the fund balance) as well as nearly $190,000 of the County 
grant.  These numbers will change once we receive bids for the construction this summer. 

• Berryessa Vista assumes a small amount of money to pay for a gate and signage to help 
control illegal OHV use. 

4



• The grants we had in prior years to fund environmental education at the Napa River 
Ecological Reserve will have run out by the end of this fiscal year; no environmental 
education at the Reserve is included in the budget. 

• The proposed budget for the Vine Trail assumes no capital and operating costs, and only a 
small amount for staff time. 

• Putah Creek assumes the cost of preparing and obtaining a Use Permit for Spanish Valley.  
It does not at this time assume any money to resolve the access issue for Spanish Valley.  
Funding for resolving the access question would need to be taken from the District’s fund 
balance. 

• State Parks will continue to have a stand-alone, self-contained budget.  The proposed use of 
fund balance draws on funds previously donated to the District is to make improvements 
and repairs at Bothe-Napa Valley State Park.  The budget does not include the cost of 
interpretive programing and events at the Bale Grist Mill, since these are covered in the 
separate Napa Valley State Parks Association budget.  The proposed increase in Professional 
Services reflects the fact that starting July 1, 2014 we will start paying the full cost of the 
park ranger and lifeguard services that we contract from State Parks (up to now these costs 
have been covered by a State Parks grant).  Approximately $220,000 is budgeted for repairs 
and improvements (in addition to the cost of District staff working on repairs and 
improvements). 

• Within the County’s normal budgetary controls, the effect of the adopted budget is to 
control expenditures at the “division” level.  The District’s budget is currently divided into 
two “divisions”; the General Fund, for general administration and operations, and Projects.   
Staff has the ability to move money within the divisions without specific Board approval, 
but will report those changes to the Board. 

 
Work Program 
 
The proposed budget as described above and as shown in the attached spread sheets will support 
the following projects and programs: 
 
General Fund 

a. On-going administration and central office functions and supplies 
b. Development of new projects and programs 

i. Former Kirkland Ranch acquisition, CEQA review, Napa San agreement 
ii. Work with Land Trust of Napa Count on potential purchases, including Cedar 

Roughs-Smittle Creek, Vallejo Lakes, Lake Curry, and others  
iii. Oat Hill Mine Trail extension north of Aetna Springs Road to Lake County line 
iv. Obtain approval for and install signage for the Berryessa Peak Trail 

c. Board elections 
d. Set up and staff Park and Open Space District Advisory Committee 

 
Moore Creek 

a. Completion of boundary survey and fencing 
b. Open the Lake Hennessey Unit 
c. Construction of approximately 2 miles of new trails at the Lake Hennessey Unit 
d. Work on the Madrone Footpath 
e. Routine maintenance and operations 

5



 
Oat Hill Mine Trail 

a. Some erosion control work 
b. Routine maintenance and operations 

 
Napa River and Bay Trail 

a. Continued negotiations with the Department of Fish and Wildlife over the proposed 
trail at ponds 9 and 10 north of Green Island Road. 

b. Construction of 0.8 miles of new Class I path between Soscol Ferry Road and Napa Pipe 
c. Routine maintenance and operations of existing sections of the trail 

 
Camp Berryessa 

a. Completion of plans, award of bid and construction of Phase I 
b. Fundraising to pay for equipment and furnishings 
c. Set up camp host system and reservation system 
d. Open Phase I 

 
Berryessa Vista 

a. Improve signage and install gate to address illegal OHV use 
b. Route maintenance and operations 

 
Napa River Ecological Reserve 

a. Disseminate the curriculum guide to teachers 
b. Continue contracts for portable toilet, trash pickup, and graffiti removal 
c. Continue maintenance weeding of invasive plants in the meadow area (2-3 paid crews) 

 
Vine Trail 

a. Participate on Vine Trail Board 
b. Support joint Ridge Trail-Vine Trail event at Bothe-Napa Valley State Park 
c. Investigate joint branding and marketing efforts between District and Vine Trail 

Coalition 
 
Putah Creek 

a. Resolve access for Spanish Valley 
b. Prepare CEQA review and obtain Use Permit for Spanish Valley 
c. Install gate and signage to control illegial OHV use at Crystal Flats 
d. Obtain site control of the BLM 480 acres between Lake Berryessa Estates and Spanish 

Valley 
e. Complete repair of water system at Spanish Valley 

 
State Parks 

a. On-going operations and maintenance 
b. Obtain PEF approval and complete repairs to cabins at Bothe-Napa Valley State Park 
c. Expand outdoor education programs at Bothe-Napa Valley State Park 
d. Complete improvements to the swimming pool at Bothe-Napa Valley State Park 
e. Complete re-roofing of the Bale Grist Mill and Granary 
f. Complete pavement overlay for day use and yurt area at Bothe-Napa Valley State Park 

6



g. Seek solution to problems at Robert Louis Stevenson State Park 
h. Dedicate the Ritchie Trail as part of the Bay Area Ridge Trail 

 
 

7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



 
 
 
 
STAFF REPORT 
 
By:  Chris Cahill, Principal Planner 
Date:    June 9, 2013 
Item:  3b 
Subject: Consideration and potential approval of a $2,000 grant to Tuleyome to 

support the construction of the Lake Berryessa North End Trail and adoption 
of the Lake Berryessa North End Trail CEQA Negative Declaration.  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
1.) Adopt the project negative declaration, based on findings 1-5 at page 5, below. 
2.) Approve a $2,000 grant to Tuleyome to support their construction of the Lake 

Berryessa North End Trail. 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION  
 
Negative Declaration Prepared. The project site is not on any of the lists of hazardous 
waste sites enumerated under Government Code section 65962.5. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Tuleyome has an agreement with the Bureau of Reclamation to repair, reroute, and 
improve the North End Trail, one section of a proposed multi-use regional public trail 
around Lake Berryessa. The project includes the replacement of a much deteriorated and 
partially abandoned existing trail and is necessary to alleviate safety concerns for trail 
users, to reduce environmental impacts, and to reduce ongoing maintenance requirements. 
The new 4-foot wide, dirt-surfaced trail would be located on Bureau of Reclamation 
property and would further one of the key goals of the Lake Berryessa Visitor Services 
Plan, providing a regional trail system at the lake.  
  
The main body of the proposed North End Trail would be five miles long and would hew 
fairly close to the lakeshore;  an additional 2.3 miles of access trails would connect to 
trailheads along Berryessa-Knoxville Road and loop trails would provide shorter trail 
options and open up access to various hills and viewpoints. The proposed trail plan is 
attached for the Board’s review.  

20



While it ultimately may be part of the larger Lake Berryessa Trail Project, the North End 
Trail is a viable stand-alone segment, and will be useful regardless of whether the larger 
trail project is completed. The Bureau of Reclamation has already completed two other 
segments of the Lake Berryessa Trail - the Visitor Center Access Trail (1,360 feet) that links 
Oak Shores Park to the Visitors Center and the Smittle Creek Park Trail (3,817 feet).  
 
Access to the North End Trail will be from entrance gates along the public Berryessa-
Knoxville Rd. Parking is available alongside the road on dirt pull-outs. Gates will be 
constructed (or in some cases, repaired) by Reclamation at six trailheads to allow access to 
pedestrians and bicycles, while excluding non-authorized motor vehicles. Reclamation will 
begin planning and potential environmental review on trailhead development, including 
trash receptacles and restrooms, once the trail is closer to completion. Four former 
trailheads - Buckhorn, Gibson Flat, LaPointe, and an unnamed trailhead - will be closed. At 
two of those former trail heads, Buckhorn and Gibson Flat, emergency vehicle access will 
be retained. 
 
The total North End Trail project is estimated to cost $486,680. Tuleyome has obtained a 
grant to cover the cost of the project minus the 12% match required by the grant. The 
District’s $2,000 grant would become part of the required 12% local match. Tuleyome hopes 
to start construction in 2014 or 2015.  
 
The Bureau of Reclamation is the responsible party for completing National Environmental 
Policy Act (NEPA) review of the proposed project. Reclamation completed that review and 
found no significant impact, as mitigated, under NEPA in their “Environmental 
Assessment of the Rehabilitation of the North End Trail at Lake Berryessa” document of 
March 29, 2011. The attached CEQA negative declaration tiers off of Reclamation’s NEPA 
work, and is primarily focused on areas, such as Air Quality, where CEQA’s requirements 
are more stringent than or otherwise appreciably different from those mandated by NEPA. 
 
The attached CEQA Initial Study/ Negative Declaration finds that the proposed trail project 
will not have any significant environmental impacts, whether individually or cumulatively.  
 
CEQA COMMENTS RECEIVED/ RESPONSE TO COMMENTS 
 
District and Tuleyome staff met with the Gamble family, the only private property owner 
near the proposed North End Trail, in early December, 2013. District staff and Tuleyome 
have attempted to address all of the concerns raised by the Gambles in the draft Negative 
Declaration. However, upon receipt of the draft initial study in May, 2014, the Gambles 
remained concerned about some elements of the proposed trail and submitted the attached 
comment letter. Staff’s response to the substantive issues raised in that letter follows:  
 
 
 

21



 
Comment 1 
“Private property is respected as private and not trespassed or 
encroached upon by the location of the trail or its users. Napa 
County Parks District, U.S. Bureau of Reclamation and the trail 
sponsor Tuleyome indemnify the Gamble Ranch for damages incurred by 
the trail or its construction.” 
 
Response: 
Issues related to trespass and potential conflict with neighboring agricultural operations 
were addressed and found to be less than significant in the Bureau of Reclamation’s 2011 
Environmental Assessment (see p. 3-16 of that document.) The proposed North End Trail 
would replace an existing trail and the Bureau of Reclamation has committed to addressing 
any trespass issues that may arise through “fencing, signs, and pull-outs along the road, as 
well as local law enforcement.” 
 
Additionally, California’s Recreational Use Statute (Ca. Civil Code §846 et seq.) provides 
substantial legal protections to private property owners, including providing statutory 
immunity to adjacent private land owners from claims by recreationalists, such as trail 
users, who might wander off of designated trails and onto adjacent private property. 
 
Comment 2 
“Bathrooms and garbage collection need to be incorporated with 
regular service in the plan.” 
 
Response: 
As noted at page 2 of the attached Initial Study, Reclamation has committed to considering 
new and additional restroom and garbage facilities near the North End Trail, should the 
user base warrant them. However, it is difficult to anticipate how much additional demand 
will be created by a replacement trail of this type and it is likewise difficult to determine 
where any new facilities would best be located until the trail is constructed and actually in 
use. The location and nature of those facilities is, therefore, not foreseeable at this time. 
Additionally, it has been the experience of the District and of our partners at the City of 
Napa Water Department that an absence of garbage facilities (a great many garbage cans 
were recently removed from the south and eastern shores of the City’s Lake Hennessey 
reservoir) can actually result in less dumping and fewer trash and litter problems than a 
recreational area with garbage cans and garbage service supplied. 
 
Comment 3 
“Points of access minimized, to help control overuse of the area.” 
 
Response: 
As noted at page 2 of the attached Initial Study, “Gates will be constructed (or in some 
cases, repaired) by Reclamation at six trailheads to allow access to pedestrians and bicycles 

22



while excluding non-authorized motor vehicles. . . Four former trailheads - Buckhorn, 
Gibson Flat, LaPoint, and an unnamed trailhead - will be closed. At two of those former 
trail heads, Buckhorn and Gibson Flat, emergency vehicle access will be retained.”  
 
Comment 4 
“Increased public use requires a Vegetation and Management Plan 
that addresses the area's increasing fires.” 
 
Response: 
As noted at page 10 of the attached Initial Study;  
 

Impacts related to wildfire risks were analyzed in and thoroughly addressed by the Bureau of 
Reclamation’s March, 2011 National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) document, 
Environmental Assessment, Rehabilitation of North End Trail at Lake Berryessa, Napa 
County, California. As noted in the Environmental Assessment, the Bureau of Reclamation 
has a Fire Management Plan that is periodically updated, providing policies and 
management actions for wildfire and fuels management. It was determined that improved 
trail conditions would not contribute to an increased potential for wildfires, though 
construction vehicles and gas powered equipment could present a temporary fire risk. 
 
Campfires caused only 4% of wildfires in 2012 according to the latest Wildfire Activity 
Statistics by the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection. Neither camping nor 
campfires will be allowed in this area of the LBRA. In addition, Reclamation has committed 
in the EA to signage that warns hikers of fire danger. Vehicles, the cause of 8% of wildfires in 
2012, will not be allowed on the Trail, which is designated as a non-motorized trail.  
 
By improving the condition of the trail, access to the area for emergency purposes will also be 
improved. An increase in users of the trail may also be expected to increase the likelihood of 
early fire detection. In addition, two trailheads that will be closed to the public will retain 
emergency vehicle access. The third trailhead to be closed has no emergency vehicle access, 
but is in close proximity to another trailhead. The fourth trailhead that will be closed 
(LaPointe) is remote from other trailheads, and will mean that access to some 1.7 miles of the 
trail will only be possible at either end. However this trailhead, which is on private land and 
currently subject to an agreement between Reclamation and Gamble Ranch LLC, is being 
closed at the latter’s request. 
 
Trail construction, which could present a temporary increase in fire risk, will occur in the 
wet season to improve soil compaction, and will be subject to BMPs with respect to fire 
avoidance and reduction. 

 
 
 
 

23



Comment 5 
“Of paramount importance is that the construction and management of 
the trail not interfere with the Gamble Ranch's water line running 
to the ranch headquarters on the East side of Lake Berryessa.”   
 
Response: 
While this issue is not precisely related to CEQA or the draft environmental document, it is 
of great practical concern both to the Gamble Ranch and to Tuleyome. The Gambles have 
been good enough to offer to flag the water line in the field and, that having been done, 
District staff will visit the site and collect GPS coordinates. Tuleyome has committed to 
marking the line on all of their working plans and to communicating the presence of the 
line to their trail contractor so that trail construction work does not damage or expose the 
water line.  
 
 
FINDINGS 
 
The Board has received and reviewed the proposed Negative Declaration pursuant to the 
provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and of the District’s Local 
Procedures for Implementing CEQA, and makes the following findings. That: 
 

1. Prior to taking action on the Negative Declaration and the proposed project, 
the Board read and considered said Declaration. 

 
2. The Negative Declaration is based on independent judgment exercised by the 

Board. 
 
3. The Negative Declaration was prepared and considered in accordance with 

the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act. 
 
4. Considering the record as whole, there is no substantial evidence that the 

project will have a significant effect on the environment. 
 
5. The Secretary of the Napa County Regional Park and Open Space District is 

the custodian of the records of the proceedings on which this decision is 
based. Records are located at the offices of the Napa County Regional Park 
and Open Space District, 1125 Third Street, Second Floor, Napa, Calif. 

 

24



1

Cahill, Christopher

From: Launce L. Gamble <llg@gamblepartners.com>
Sent: Wednesday, May 21, 2014 8:24 PM
To: Cahill Chris
Subject: Fwd: Lake Berryessa North End Trail

Not sure if you received this ... 
 
Launce L. Gamble 
llg@gamblepartners.com<mailto:llg@gamblepartners.com> 
 
Begin forwarded message: 
 
From: "Launce L. Gamble" <llg@gamblepartners.com<mailto:llg@gamblepartners.com>> 
Date: May 21, 2014 at 1:35:34 PM PDT 
To: "ccahill@nrposd.org<mailto:ccahill@nrposd.org>" 
<ccahill@nrposd.org<mailto:ccahill@nrposd.org>>, 
"chriscahill@countyofnapa.com<mailto:chriscahill@countyofnapa.com>" 
<chriscahill@countyofnapa.com<mailto:chriscahill@countyofnapa.com>> 
Cc: "Launce L. Gamble" <llg@gamblepartners.com<mailto:llg@gamblepartners.com>>, "Launce E. 
Gamble" <legamble@gamblepartners.com<mailto:legamble@gamblepartners.com>>, 
"GGAMBULL@aol.com<mailto:GGAMBULL@aol.com>" <GGAMBULL@aol.com<mailto:GGAMBULL@aol.com>>, Tom 
Gamble <Tom@GambleFamilyVineyards.com<mailto:Tom@GambleFamilyVineyards.com>> 
Subject: Lake Berryessa North End Trail 
 
 
Dear Mr. Cahill, 
 
We have received your Notice of Intent to Adopt a Negative Declaration for the Lake Berryessa 
North End Trail project. While we are in favor of the project we have some issues that we 
believe need to be addressed so that the project can become a successful asset of the Napa 
County Regional Park and Open Space District. These comments are submitted with the intent 
that you incorporate these issues into your public hearing on the project on June 9, 2014 
 
The Gamble Ranch operates a water line crossing a portion of the proposed trail which 
supplies the ranch headquarters on the East side of the lake.  Should the Northshore Trail 
proceed it will be necessary to honor this water supply line's location which is part of our 
settlement with the Federal government. The location of the water line is between the “Blue 
Monday” and “Racoon Lagoon” trailheads. 
 
Our concerns for the Northshore Trail are as follows: 
 
  *   Private property is respected as private and not trespassed or encroached upon by the 
location of the trail or its users.  Napa County Parks District, U.S. Bureau of Reclamation 
and the trail sponsor Tuleyome indemnify the Gamble Ranch for damages incurred by the trail 
or its construction. 
 
  *   Bathrooms and garbage collection need to be incorporated with regular service in the 
plan. 
 
  *   Points of access minimized, to help control overuse of the area. 
 
  *   Increased public use requires a Vegetation and Management Plan that addresses the 
area's increasing fires. 
 

25



2

  *   Of paramount importance is that the construction and management of the trail not 
interfere with the Gamble Ranch's water line running to the ranch headquarters on the East 
side of Lake Berryessa. 
Our perspective is that this area of the lake has been neglected from inception.  As you plan 
for greater public use with Camp Berryessa and a North Shoreline Trail significant resources 
to maintain and support a "good" experience are essential. 
 
The Gamble Ranch is very interested in making the land and neighborhood something we all can 
be proud of, and we feel with realistic planning for the ongoing needs of this location and 
area the project can succeed. 
 
We would appreciate you keeping us in the loop regarding the future developments of the trail 
and other plans the Napa County Park District has for the Berryessa. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
Launce L. Gamble 
 
 
 
 
Launce L. Gamble 
100 Montgomery Street, #1220 
San Francisco, CA. 94104 
415‐782‐8104‐office 
415‐782‐8109‐fax 
llg@gamblepartners.com<mailto:llg@gamblepartners.com> 
 

26



!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

")

")

")

")

")

")

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(Bridge #1

BW4

BW3

BW2

BW1

9

8

6

5

4
3

2

1

7

24

20

19

18

12

11

10

23
22

21

16

1514

13

17

K6

Blue Monday

Barton Hill

Putah Creek

Racoon Lagoon

Schoolhouse Cove

R6

R5

R1

SB1

SB4

CC2

CC1

CW1

µBERRYESSA TRAILS AND BERRYESSA TRAILS AND 
CONSERVATIONCONSERVATION

0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5
Miles

Legend

Trail

ExistingTrail

") Trailheads

!( Bridges

!( Boardwalks (BW)

!( Causeway (CW)

!( Other Structures

!( Wet Crossings

North End Trail

1:12,000

Future Site of 
Camp Berryessa

Putah Creek Trail

Chaparral Cove

K6 to Eticuera Trail

27

Carol
Text Box
Tuleyome NAPA



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 
 

 Monday, May 12, 2014 at 2:00 P.M. 
1195 Third Street, Third Floor, Napa, Calif. 94559 

 
 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call  

Directors present:   Karen Bower-Turjanis, Michael Haley, Barry Christian, Tony Norris and Dave 
Finigan. 
Staff present: John Woodbury, Chris Apallas, and Melissa Frost. 

 
2. Public Comment 

None. 
 
3. Set Matters 

None 
 
4. Administrative Items 

a. Consideration and potential approval of Minutes of the Board of Directors regular 
meeting of April 14, 2014. 
Minutes were approved as presented. 
TN-MH- KBT 

 A 
 

b. Consideration and potential authorization for the release for public comment of the 
draft budget for fiscal year 2014-15. 
Directors voted to find the action not a project for purposes of CEQA, approved the release for 
public comment, and set the public hearing for June 9, 2014. 
MH-KBT-BC-TN-DF 

c. Consideration and potential approval of a resolution authorizing an application for 
local assistance funding of $120,000 from the Association of Bay Area Governments 
to help fund a segment of the Napa River and Bay Trail between Soscol Ferry Road 
and Napa Pipe, and for the General Manager to execute the necessary grant 
documents. 

Michael Haley 
Director, Ward Three 

 

 
  
 

 

  

  

Karen Turjanis 
Director, Ward One 

Tony Norris 
Director, Ward Two 

 

 
  

Dave Finigan 
Director, Ward Four 

 

 
  

Barry Christian 
Director, Ward Five 

 

 
  

 

PARK DISTRICT MINUTES   1 OF 3  MAY 12, 2014 
 

115



Directors voted that the action is covered by the Negative Declaration adopted by the Napa 
County Regional Park and Open Space District on March 9, 2010, under  CEQA, and approved 
the attached resolution. 
BC-MH-KBT-TN-DF 

 

d. Receipt of monthly report for Bothe-Napa Valley State Park and the Bale Grist Mill 
State Historic Park.  
John Woodbury gave the report. No action taken. 
 

e. Consideration and potential approval of recommendation from an ad hoc committee 
consisting of Directors Christian and Turjanis for a commemorative plaque for past 
Director Myrna Abramowicz.   
Directors selected the viewing pipe area and shade structure on the Napa River and Bay Trail 
just west of  “Mike’s Hike and Bike Loop” to commemorate to Myrna and to place a plaque there 
in her honor. Directors authorized a new ad hoc committee of Directors Turjanis and Christian 
to develop a recommendation for how to acknowledge the services and former director Harold 
Kelly. 
MH-TN-BC-KBT-DF 
 

f. Receipt of report on expenditures, encumbrances, donations, and grants approved 
by District staff. 
John Woodbury gave the report. No action taken.  
 

g. Review of the District Projects Status  
John Woodbury gave the report with discussion on the River and Bay trail, Berryessa Peak 
Trail, Camp Berryessa, Lake Hennessey North Shore, Moore Creek, Bothe State Park, Vallejo 
Lakes, and the Vine Trail. 

 
5. Announcements by Board and Staff 

 Dave Finigan & Barry Christian attended the Park and Open Space Conference in San 
Francisco 

 Barry Christian volunteered for the Donaldson Elementary School Environmental Faire 
planting project in American Canyon 

 Tony Norris commented on the property next to the Anguin airport that Pacific Union 
College is selling, and asked whether the  park district should attempt its purchase? 

   
6. Agenda Planning 

 
Next Board Meetings:    Regular Board Meeting of June 9, 2014  
 

7. Adjournment 
 
Adjourned at 3:45 pm 

 
 
 
 
 
 

116



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
                        DAVE FINIGAN, Board President 
 
 ATTEST:  

                                    
____________________________________ 

  MELISSA FROST, District Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Key 
Vote:  MH = Michael Haley; TN = Tony Norris;  BC+ Barry Christian;  DF = David Finigan;  KBT= Karen Bower Turjanis 

The maker of the motion and second are reflected respectively in the order of the recorded vote. 
Notations under vote:  N = No;  A = Abstain;  X = Excused 

 

117



Park	  Report	  for	  May	  2014	  
Submitted	  by:	  Ranger	  Sandy	  Jones	  and	  Jeanne	  Marioni	  
	  
Bothe-‐Napa	  
	  
Bothe	  has	  been	  quite	  busy	  during	  week	  and	  the	  campground	  full	  every	  weekend.	  The	  
park	  ran	  well	  during	  Bottle	  Rock	  and	  over	  Memorial	  Day	  weekend.	  	  The	  pool	  remains	  
very	  popular.	  	  Seasonal	  Staff	  on	  board:	  	  5	  lifeguards;	  5	  entrance	  station	  workers	  and	  1.2	  
maintenance	  people.	  	  These	  are	  in	  addition	  to	  our	  resident	  camp	  hosts	  and	  hostesses.	  
	  
The	  Visitor	  Center	  is	  now	  open	  5	  days	  a	  week.	  	  In	  July	  another	  volunteer	  will	  be	  
available	  and	  the	  Visitor	  Center	  will	  be	  open	  7	  days	  a	  week	  for	  the	  summer.	  Park	  visitors	  
enjoy	  stopping	  by	  to	  pick	  up	  a	  trail	  map	  and	  ask	  questions	  about	  the	  park	  or	  what	  to	  do	  
the	  valley.	  They	  often	  spend	  time	  looking	  around	  the	  VC	  and	  sometimes	  buy	  an	  item	  in	  
the	  gift	  shop.	  It	  is	  especially	  helpful	  for	  park	  operations	  to	  have	  assistance	  with	  
telephone	  calls.	  
	  
Cemetery	  Project:	  A	  meeting	  with	  CSP	  folks	  is	  set	  for	  July	  22.	  	  The	  State’s	  accessible	  
trails	  coordinator,	  Travis	  Segebart,	  will	  be	  present	  to	  confer	  about	  the	  layout	  of	  the	  
paths	  and	  location	  of	  interpretive	  panels	  and	  benches.	  	  He	  will	  also	  write	  the	  PEF.	  	  
NVSPA	  has	  agreed	  to	  find	  funding	  for	  the	  interpretive	  panels	  and	  benches.	  
	  
Cemetery	  Grant:	  California	  State	  Parks	  Foundation	  is	  offering	  another	  Park	  Partnership	  
Grant.	  We	  will	  apply	  for	  grant	  money	  to	  fund	  the	  portions	  of	  the	  Cemetery	  Project	  that	  
NVSPA	  is	  responsible	  to	  pay	  for:	  interpretive	  panels	  and	  benches.	  	  There	  were	  additional	  
projects	  in	  the	  original	  Cemetery	  Rehabilitation	  Plan	  that	  might	  also	  be	  suitable	  for	  
grant	  funding:	  a	  native	  plant	  buffer	  to	  screen	  parking	  areas,	  a	  frame	  of	  the	  original	  
outline	  of	  the	  White	  Church,	  reconstruction	  of	  the	  wood	  fencing	  around	  family	  plots,	  
and	  additional	  burial	  markers.	  	  Feasibility	  of	  these	  additional	  projects	  will	  be	  discussed	  
with	  CSPs	  at	  the	  July	  22nd	  meeting	  and	  might	  be	  included	  in	  the	  grant	  application.	  
	  
The	  Historic	  Orchard	  has	  been	  tended	  and	  watered.	  	  The	  orchard	  looks	  healthy	  and	  will	  
be	  producing	  summer/fall	  fruit	  if	  we	  can	  devise	  a	  method	  to	  keep	  the	  critters	  from	  
eating	  all	  the	  ripe	  fruit	  before	  we	  do!	  
	  
At	  our	  invitation,	  Stewards	  of	  Redwoods	  came	  to	  Bothe	  and	  took	  a	  tour	  of	  our	  
Redwood	  groves.	  	  The	  stewards	  have	  funds	  available	  to	  assist	  us	  in	  developing	  	  a	  portion	  
of	  our	  Outdoor	  Education	  Program	  to	  include	  awareness	  and	  stewardship	  of	  Redwood	  
Trees.	  They	  have	  also	  offered	  a	  couple	  of	  their	  staff	  to	  lead	  some	  educational	  hikes	  at	  
Bothe	  and	  to	  train	  a	  few	  of	  our	  volunteers	  to	  lead	  hikes.	  
	  
	  
	  

118



Our	  Junior	  Ranger	  Program	  is	  back!	  Johnny	  Ehlers	  will	  lead	  a	  JR	  program	  every	  Saturday	  
morning	  (10:00-‐11:30)	  followed	  by	  a	  docent	  led	  hike	  every	  Saturday	  afternoon	  (open	  to	  
everyone).	  We	  are	  fortunate	  to	  have	  this	  experienced	  Outdoor	  Education	  docent.	  	  All	  of	  
you	  are	  asked	  to	  come	  and	  enjoy	  a	  Saturday	  afternoon	  docent	  led	  hike	  at	  Bothe	  at	  
12:30.	  	  
	  
Johnny	  is	  working	  to	  get	  schools	  involved	  in	  our	  developing	  Outdoor	  Education	  program.	  	  	  
He	  is	  contacting	  teachers	  about	  the	  program	  and	  letting	  them	  know	  we	  have	  funding	  for	  
buses	  (a	  big	  hurdle	  for	  many	  schools).	  	  Our	  initial	  outreach	  will	  focus	  on	  underserved	  
children	  in	  Calistoga	  Schools.	  
	  
Park	  Discovery	  Day/Trail	  Dedication	  –	  July	  27	  
Please	  attend	  Bothe-‐Napa’s	  Discovery	  Day.	  	  An	  informative	  flyer	  is	  at	  the	  end	  of	  this	  
report	  and	  there	  is	  a	  separate	  PDF	  attached	  for	  you	  to	  circulate.	  	  Help	  us	  get	  the	  word	  
out!	  

	  
Bale	  Grist	  Mill	  
Ardenwood	  Farms	  has	  offered	  to	  donate	  dried	  Indian	  corn	  and	  popcorn	  to	  Bale	  Mill	  for	  
our	  mill	  tours	  and	  living	  history	  programs.	  	  In	  early	  June	  we	  will	  travel	  to	  Fremont	  to	  pick	  
up	  a	  load	  of	  corn.	  	  We	  are	  also	  arranging	  a	  site	  visit	  at	  Bale	  Mill	  for	  the	  staff	  and	  
supervisors	  of	  Ardenwood.	  	  Ardenwood	  Farm	  is	  a	  great	  park	  partner	  for	  us	  to	  develop	  a	  
continuing	  relationship	  with.	  http://www.ebparks.org/parks/ardenwood	  
	  
Old Mill Days – We continue to expand our living history programs.  In June we 
will be meeting a master cooper.  He	  is	  in	  his	  70s	  and	  too	  old	  now	  to	  work	  his	  trade	  
but	  along	  with	  his	  expertise,	  he	  has	  hand	  tools	  that	  might	  be	  of	  interest	  to	  us.	  	  Our	  goal	  
is	  to	  have	  some	  accurate	  replicas	  of	  dry-‐tight	  flour	  barrels	  and/or	  casks	  in	  the	  mill	  to	  
better	  interpret	  how	  the	  grain	  was	  transported	  to	  the	  mill	  and	  how	  the	  flour	  left.	  This	  
part	  of	  the	  story	  can	  be	  a	  part	  of	  our	  regular	  tours	  and	  the	  skill	  of	  coopering	  can	  perhaps	  
be	  demonstrated	  at	  our	  living	  history	  events.	  	  We	  also	  intend	  to	  research	  historically	  
correct	  flour	  sacks	  and	  incorporate	  that	  information	  in	  our	  tours	  and	  living	  history	  
events.	  
	  
We	  received	  a	  $7,500	  capacity	  building	  grant	  from	  Napa	  County/Arts	  and	  Culture	  to	  
create	  a	  video	  of	  the	  mill	  that	  will	  be	  shared	  throughout	  the	  valley	  (and	  beyond)	  to	  
increase	  awareness	  of	  the	  “story	  of	  the	  mill”	  and	  the	  great	  tours/events/programs	  we	  
offer.	  We	  have	  one	  year	  to	  complete	  the	  project.	  	  Jeanne	  Marioni	  attended	  the	  Board	  of	  
Supervisors	  meeting	  to	  thank	  the	  board	  for	  their	  continued	  support	  and	  the	  award	  of	  
the	  grant	  funds.	  
	  
May	  6th	  Jeanne	  Marioni	  and	  Kathleen	  Chasey,	  NVSPA	  Board	  member,	  attended	  Park	  
Advocacy	  Day	  in	  Sacramento	  and	  “manned”	  a	  table	  featuring	  Bale	  Mill.	  We	  also	  
networked	  with	  representatives	  of	  other	  parks	  and	  met	  with	  board	  members	  of	  the	  
California	  State	  Parks	  Foundation	  to	  thank	  them	  for	  their	  continued	  support.	  

119



We	  are	  working	  with	  California	  State	  Parks	  to	  create	  a	  park	  brochure	  for	  Bale	  Grist	  Mil	  
State	  Historic	  Park.	  	  Until	  now,	  the	  mill	  has	  had	  to	  “piggy	  back”	  on	  the	  state	  park	  
brochure	  for	  Bothe-‐Napa.	  	  Now	  the	  mill	  will	  have	  its	  own	  full	  brochure.	  	  We	  are	  jointly	  
working	  on	  the	  text,	  photos	  and	  layout	  of	  the	  new	  brochure.	  	  We	  hosted	  CSPs	  folks	  at	  
the	  mill	  last	  week	  for	  a	  tour	  and	  ideas	  for	  the	  brochure	  that	  might	  be	  ready	  as	  early	  as	  
this	  fall.	  
	  
State	  Parks	  replaced	  the	  roofs	  on	  the	  water	  supply	  tank	  and	  the	  storage	  shed	  behind	  the	  
mill’s	  bathrooms.	  They	  look	  great. 
 

	  
	  
	  
	  
We	  continue	  to	  improve	  the	  parks’	  organizational	  structures.	  We	  now	  have	  a	  one-‐year	  
contract	  with	  Constant	  Contact	  –	  a	  company	  that	  offers	  on-‐line	  marketing	  tools	  that	  will	  
enable	  us	  to	  easily	  send	  out	  email	  blasts,	  newsletters,	  announcements,	  invitations,	  
promotions,	  thank	  you	  notes,	  flyers,	  etc.	  	  	  
	  
The	  Soroptimists	  of	  St	  Helena	  are	  considering	  having	  one	  of	  their	  annual	  events	  at	  the	  
mill.	  	  Good	  news	  as	  we	  have	  been	  working	  towards	  greater	  awareness	  that	  the	  mill	  is	  a	  
wonderful	  venue	  for	  many	  kinds	  of	  smaller	  gatherings.	  

120



	  
	  

	  

FREE DISCOVERY DAY  
BOTHE-NAPA VALLEY STATE PARK   

SUNDAY, JULY 27

SCHEDULE:

8AM-5PM Free park entry
10AM-2PM Visit “Trail Junction Village” exhibits and 
enjoy tours and activities 
12PM - Ridge Trail - Vine Trail Junction Dedication

Additional Hosts:

HIKE & RIDE - Explore the trail with guided and 
self-guided hikes and bike rides
VISIT “TRAIL JUNCTION VILLAGE” - learn more about 
local community and business partners
TOUR - Discover Bothe’s rich pioneer, Native American 
and natural history through displays and tours
ARTS & CRAFTS - Vine Trail Art + Adventure Course with 
kid-friendly hands-on art crafting 
SWIM - in recently-renovated swimming pool*
BALE MILL HIKE - to neighboring Bale Grist Mill 
Historic Park*
LUNCH - pack in a picnic or purchase lunch and 
refreshments from food trucks.
*Note: Fees apply for swimming pool & Mill Tour

DISCOVERY ACTIVITIES

CELEBRATE a new 

Ridge Trail-Vine Trail Junction!

Join our “Trail Junction Village”! Email barryislearning@comcast.net if you are part of  a health, wellness, or 
recreation-focused organization and would like to join as a free exhibitor at this community event! 

On July 27, the Bay Area Ridge Trail Council will 
formally dedicate three miles in Bothe-Napa Valley 
State Park – and this is just the beginning of an 
emerging trail hub! 
Outdoor enthusiasts are looking forward to a Ridge 
Trail-Napa Valley Vine Trail network that will link the 
communites of Calistoga and St. Helena, and 
ultimately connect Napa Valley with surrounding 
ridgelines and wild open spaces like Robert Louis 
Stevenson State Park, Wildlake and Duff Ranch 
Preserves, Sugarloaf Ridge State Park, and beyond!

Napa County Regional Park & Open Space 
District operates this park and is waiving 
the entrance fee on July 27.

121



 
 
 
 
STAFF REPORT 
 
Date:    June 9, 2014 
Agenda Item: 4.C 
Subject: Consideration and potential authorization for General Manager to submit a proposal 

to take on operation of Robert Louis Stevenson State Park. 
 
 
Recommendation 
 

1. Find that this action is exempt from the California Code of Regulations (State CEQA 
Guidelines) 

2. Authorize the General Manager to submit a proposal to California State Parks to operate 
Robert Louis Stevenson State Park 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION  
 
The proposed action is not a project under the California Code of Regulations 15378 (State CEQA 
Guidelines). 
 
Background 
 
The District was recently approached by several members of the community with a request that the 
District assume responsibility for Robert Louis Stevenson State Park (RLS).   RLS has not been 
staffed by State Parks for several years, and the neglect has become increasingly apparent.  Of 
particular concern are two houses (one historic, one not) which have been left vacant and 
vulnerable to vandalism.  The attached proposal describes the situation in more detail. 
 
If the Board approves submittal of the proposal, it will likely take several months, if not more, to 
get the proposal through the State Parks process and to amend the District’s operating agreement to 
include RLS.  If the proposal is approved, the District will need to seek donations from the 
community or draw from the District’s fund balance to cover initial repair costs to the two houses.  
Using conservative assumptions about future rental income, the District’s initial investment can be 
repaid within five years. 
 

122



DRAFT 
Proposal for Management and Operation of  

Robert Louis Stevenson State Park 
 

Submitted by the Napa County Regional Park and Open Space District 

June 2014 

 

Background 

On April 1, 2012, the Napa County Regional Park and Open Space District assumed 
management and operating responsibility for Bothe-Napa Valley State Park and the Bale Grist 
Mill State Historic Park, under a five year agreement with the California Department of Parks 
and Recreation.  In the first two years of the agreement, the District, in partnership with the 
Napa Valley State Parks Association, has: 

• reopened the campground and continuously operated it year-round 
• reopened the swimming pool and operated it the same hours as had been the case 

before State Parks embarked on the process of closing parks due to financial 
shortfalls; this summer the hours been increased substantially beyond what they 
had been in recent years. 

• Operated the Bale Grist Mill for the same hours as had been the case before the 
District assumed its responsibilities; these hours have been expanded this summer. 

• Repaired the historic Wright House so it could be leased out to generate income for 
the parks. 

• Furnished three yurts installed by State Parks, and installed and furnished another 
seven yurts, to expand the range of accommodations available to the public and 
generate additional income for the parks. 

• Made substantial progress on the huge backlog of deferred maintenance at the 
parks. 

• Prepared plans to renovate six semi-historic cabins to further expand the range of 
accommodations available to the public and to generate income for the parks. 

123



• Continued to operate and recently expanded special programs and events, such as 
youth summer camp, the Harvest Festival, and Pioneer Christmas, and also added 
new events which promote the mission of the two parks. 

Robert Louis Stevenson State Park (RLS), while mostly within Napa County, was not on the list 
of parks proposed for closure by State Parks, so the agreement the District entered into with 
State Parks in 2012 did not include RLS.  Unfortunately, RLS has not had State Park staff 
assigned to it for many years; in the absence of assigned staff, the staff at Bothe-Napa Valley 
State Park has been, and continues to be, the first responder when there is an emergency, even 
though the District has no legal authority at RLS.   

Recently, a group of individuals and organizations that have had a long-term interest in RLS 
approached the District asking if the District would consider expanding its agreement with State 
Parks to include all of RLS.  If the District would take on this responsibility, they offered to 
provide assistance.   

 

Concerns Regarding Robert Louis Stevenson State Park 

RLS consists of  5,272 acres of open space, including the highest peak in the San Francisco Bay 
Area, extensive stands of Douglas Fir, Redwood and Oaks, twelve miles of recreational trails, 
and two houses (one historic, one not).  The park has numerous serious management concerns: 

• The two houses in RLS are vacant and rapidly falling into disrepair; if not repaired 
and occupied in the relatively near future they will deteriorate to the point where 
they can no longer be preserved and used productively. 

• There is considerable worry that the two houses, being vacant, are liable to be 
vandalized and/or occupied by squatters.   One of the houses has already 
experiences some vandalism.  These vacant houses are an attractive target for 
arson; if burned, they could easily cause a serious wildfire on Mount St. Helena. 

• The parking lot at the highest spot along Highway 29 provides access to both the 
Mount St. Helena and Table Rock/Palisades Trail sections of the park.  Vehicles of 
park users in this parking lot are frequently vandalized. 

• Trail maintenance is almost non-existent; there is serious soil erosion in many 
places, poison oak would have closed several sections of the trail were it not for trail 
users who have informally taken it upon themselves to whack it back, and the trail 
tread has almost disappeared along parts of the Palisades Trail. 

• The easternmost unit of RLS has experienced years of illegal trail construction by 
mountain bicyclists. 
 

Proposed Operation and Management 

The Napa County Regional Park and Open Space District does not have the resources to resolve 
all of the problems identified above.  Some of these problems have been going on for so long 

124



that they would be very difficult to resolve without considerable resources.  At the same time, 
the status quo is unacceptable, particularly in what should be a jewel of the State Park system.  
While the District does not have the ability to address all the problems at RLS, we believe we do 
have the ability to improve on the status quo.  

With this in mind, the District proposes the following: 

• Amend the current agreement between State Parks and the District to add 
management and operation of Robert Louis Stevenson State Park as described 
herein. 

• The District will repair the two houses within the park sufficient to make them safe 
and habitable, and manage their occupancy by volunteer caretakers and/or renters.  
Any rental income would be used to do further repairs to the houses or support 
other work within the park. 

• The District will seek to reduce vandalism and crime in the main parking lot on 
Highway 29.  To do this, the District will investigate the use of cameras and 
coordinate patrols with the CHP and the County Sheriff.   

• The District will sponsor volunteer trail maintenance crews as needed to cut back 
poison oak, repair trail tread, and improve water management. 

• The District, as manager of Bothe-Napa Valley State Park, will have its de facto role 
in the event of an emergency at RLS formally acknowledged and formalized.   The 
District will continue to receive calls for information and help regarding RLS.  The 
District will coordinate with Cal Fire and Napa County’s Search and Rescue operation 
in providing mileage and other way finding signs to improve the effectiveness of 
emergency response efforts.   

At the same time, it must be clearly understood what the District is NOT proposing to do: 

• We would not be taking on forest management responsibilities such as dealing with 
invasive plants or hazardous trees, except in the immediate vicinity of the two 
houses and their access driveways. 

• We would not be doing any maintenance of the road to the peak; our understanding 
is that road maintenance is done by Cal Fire, which has communication equipment 
on the peak. 

• We would not be taking on responsibility to eliminate illegal trails, or to stop 
unauthorized trail building.  While we would continue to try and find the people who 
have been and are continuing to build unauthorized trails, and encourage them to 
redirect their energy toward authorized activities, the culture of “freelance” trail 
building has had so many years to develop that we simply do not have the level of 
law enforcement capacity necessary to change that culture. 

• We would not be doing any work that would require an environmental impact 
report.  

• Our role in emergency response at RLS would be limited to receiving calls, 
coordinating communication and response with emergency providers, and ONLY 

125



LIMITED staff field response.  Our first responsibility will continue to be to Bothe-
Napa Valley State Park and the Bale Grist Mill State Historic Park. 

Assistance we would need from State Parks includes: 

• State Parks reviews any PEF’s needed for the house repairs without charging the 
District for that review, similar to the arrangement for Bothe-Napa Valley State Park 
and the Bale Grist Mill State Historic Park (under that agreement, the District 
accepts State Park issued or sponsored passes without receiving any reimbursement 
from State Parks).  

• State Parks extends the term of the operating agreement between State Parks and 
the District, such that the agreement would extend for at least five years, and 
preferably longer, from the date the agreement is amended to include RLS.  The 
original agreement was for five years, of which only three remain at this point.  The 
extension is needed to give sufficient time to complete repairs and recoup our 
investment in those repairs through rental income on the two houses.   

• When the District’s contracted State Park ranger is required to leave Bothe-Napa 
Valley State Park in order to respond to emergencies at RLS, State Parks does not 
invoice the District for those ranger hours). 

While what we propose would not solve all of the problems at Robert Louis Stevenson State 
Park, it would be a significant improvement from the existing situation. 

 

Financial Plan 

  

The District’s ability to operate Bothe-Napa Valley State Park and the Bale Grist Mill State 
Historic Park depends on controlling costs and increasing revenues without impacting the 
visitor experience nor the conservation of the natural and cultural resources of the parks.  The 
District’s business model for these two parks is working; the two parks are now operating at 
close to break-even, and with the completion of cabin repairs should be financially sustainable 
unless there is an unexpected catastrophic event. 

Robert Louis Stevenson State Park does not currently generate any income, and the District 
does not have the financial resources to subsidize RLS in any meaningful way.   The District’s 
proposal for RLS is therefore modest and incremental. 

The first order of business is the two houses on the property.  The District will recruit volunteer 
caretakers, who will stay in the houses while they fix them up at their own cost (in lieu of rent).  
Once habitable, the houses will be converted to market-rate rentals.   

Once the two houses start to generate income, the income will be used to pay back initial costs 
of repairs incurred by the District; any remaining funds will be used to support other work at 
RLS. 

126



Attachment 2
Robert Louis Stevenson State Park
Preliminary Budget Projections
June 9, 2014

Year Expenditures Amount Revenues Amount
Cumulative 

Net

1 house repairs (1) 15,000$        rental income (4) 4,000$          (24,000)$         
supplies (2) 3,000$          emergency response (3)
staff support (5) 10,000$        

2 house repairs 12,000$        rental income 16,000$        (26,800)$         
supplies 1,000$          emergency response 1,200$          
staff support 7,000$          

3 house maintenance 6,000$          rental income 19,000$        (18,600)$         
supplies 1,000$          emergency response 1,200$          
staff support 5,000$          

4 house maintenance 5,000$          rental income 19,000$        (9,400)$           
supplies 1,000$          emergency response 1,200$          
staff support 5,000$          

5 house maintenance 5,000$          rental income 19,000$        (200)$               
supplies 1,000$          emergency response 1,200$          
staff support 5,000$          

82,000$        81,800$        

Notes
1

2 Supplies includes cameras for parking lot, tools for maintenance work,new signage,etc) 
3

4
Assumes net market rent for the two houses, once fully repaired, of about $800/mth each  

5 Staff support assumes $75/hour, and covers minimal staff involvement in day to day management.  
District main office staff costs and overhead not included; these will be absorbed by the District unless 
sufficient revenues are generated to exceed direct operating expenses, in which case the excess 
revenues will be used to offset District administration costs that are directly related to RLS.

House repairs includes materials needed for repairs, and cost of contracts for specialized work.  
Assumes most work will be done by the volunteer Caretaker.

Emergency response includes State Park reimbursement for District contracted-ranger response for 
emergencies.  Assumes two days of ranger time each year for emergency response

127



 
 
 
 
STAFF REPORT 
 
Date:    June 9, 2014 
Agenda Item: 4.D 
Subject: Consideration and potential approval of letter to the Parks Forward Commission 

commenting on their draft report of April 23, 2014 
 
Recommendation 
 

1. Find that this action is exempt from the California Code of Regulations (State CEQA 
Guidelines) 

2. Authorize the General Manager to send the attached letter to the Parks Forward 
Commission 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION  
 
The proposed action is exempt from the California Code of Regulations 15378 (State CEQA 
Guidelines) pursuant to Sections 15301 (Existing Facilities) and 15304 (Minor Alterations to Land) 
and therefore CEQA is not applicable. 

 
Background 
 
The Parks Forward Commission was established by the Natural Resources Agency to investigate 
and develop recommendations for reforming California State Parks.  The Commission’s 
recommendations will likely play a major role in determining whether State Parks continues to look 
to local partners such as the Napa County Regional Park and Open Space District to operate 
various park units. 
 
The Commission released a draft report in April of this year, and intends to release the final report 
this fall.  The draft report does a capable job of describing the history of how State Parks got to its 
current state, and in general recommends delegating more authority and expanding the use of park 
partners.  However, the report looks at the situation from 40,000 feet and does not demonstrate 
much insight into the day-to-day systems that have broken down and need fixing.  In addition, the 
report’s recommendation for a “support entity” could end up just adding another layer of 
confusion and delay to already confusing and slow processes.   
 
Staff believes it is important to comment on the draft report, so that the experiences of a local 
operator of two State Parks are reflected in the final report. 
 
 

128



 
 
 
 

 
 
June 9, 2014 
 
Parks Forward Commission 
California Natural Resources Agency 
1416 Ninth Street 
Sacramento, CA  95814  
 
RE: Comments on the Parks Forward Commission draft report of April 23, 2014 
 
Dear Commissioners: 
 
As a local public agency that has operated two State Parks since April of 2012, the Napa County 
Regional Park and Open Space District has considerable interest in the Parks Forward draft report.  
We have successfully operated these two State Parks for the past two years.  When we started, the 
campground was closed, deferred maintenance was so extensive that a dozen historic and semi-
historic buildings had been abandoned, and the park cost two dollars to operate for every one dollar 
it earned.  Today, we have made substantial progress on the huge backlog of deferred maintenance, 
we’re operating the campground, pool, historic water-driven grist mill, more interpretive 
programming than had been offered in recent years…and we’re operating without taxpayer 
subsidies. 
 
The Napa community appreciates the improvements that have been made since we assumed 
operational responsibility for these two parks, and we often hear local residents express hope that we 
will continue to care for these parks.   
 
Based on our experiences over the past two years, we would like to provide some thoughts on the 
draft report. 
 
The draft report does a capable job of covering the history of the State Parks system, and the 
challenges it faces.   In addition, the two principal findings of the report reinforce what many people 
within and without the system have come to believe:  First, California’s parks system is debilitated 
by an outdated organizational structure, under-investment in innovation and business tools, and a 
culture that has not rewarded excellence, innovation and leadership.  Second, only broad-based, 
fundamental change will transform the system so that it once again leads the nation in meeting the 
needs of its residents and visitors. 
 
The vision for State Parks laid out in the report is similar to the vision and goals laid out previously 
in both adopted State Parks plans and in outside critiques of State Parks.  Thus, there is considerable 
agreement about the big picture need for change.   
 
 

1195 Third Street, Napa, California 94559 
telephone:  707-259-5933      fax:  707-299-4471 www.NapaOutdoors.org 

Karen Bower Turjanis 
Director Ward One 

 
  

 

Tony Norris 
Director Ward Two 

 
  

 

Michael Haley 
Director Ward Three 

 
  

 

Dave Finigan  
Director Ward Four 

 
  

 

Barry Christian 
Director Ward Five 

 
  

 

129



Report Recommendations 
 
Most of the recommendations contained in the draft report are straightforward and non-
controversial.   One exception is the recommendation to eliminate the requirement that managers 
must be park rangers (eg, sworn peace officers).  This change would align the State Parks 
management system with that of most other public agencies, very few of whom are run by their 
police force. I support this recommendation, for the reasons identified in the report.  
 
The other notable recommendation is the creation of a new “support entity”.  The Parks Forward 
Commission has expressed understandable concern about how to reform an agency in trouble, noting 
that prior reports looking at State Parks have ended up sitting on people’s shelves, and that it is 
difficult to effect change when the people involved may not want change.   
 
The support entity is the primary solution offered in the draft report for implementing the report’s 
recommendations.   
 
However, we do not believe the case has been made to justify the central role proposed for the 
support entity. 
 
First, the proposed support entity appears to duplicate many of the functions of the existing four 
State Parks Commissions associated with the Department, as well as the State Parks Foundation.  
What is it about the support entity that would make it more effective than these existing entities?  If 
there is a problem with the existing commissions and foundation, why not reform their structures and 
roles, rather than create another layer of bureaucracy? 
   
Second, the support entity is supposed to be an agent of change merging inside access with outside 
expertise.  Its goal is to cut out bureaucratic red tape and outdated systems and facilitate local 
partnerships.  How it would do this is unclear.  The support entity would arguably be just another 
appointed state-level body, presumably located in Sacramento, removed from day-to-day operation 
of any park.  If the support entity is to be given the ability to tap into and control public funds, and if 
it is to be allowed to dictate priorities and control who and what gets funded, as the report 
recommends, far more explanation is needed for how this would work.  How will inserting the 
support entity into the already cumbersome decision-making process make the process more 
efficient?  What will ensure the support entity’s decision making will be any more understanding of 
and responsive to on-the-ground park needs than are current systems? 

 
 

Some Additional Thoughts 
 
We would like to highlight three themes contained within the report that we strongly support: 
 

(1) Budgeting and decision-making authority should be delegated downward as much 
as possible.  State Parks is currently a “command and control” agency, where too many 
decisions can’t be made without explicit approval from above.  What State Parks needs is 
an “lead and delegate” model of administration, where the role of the central 
administration is to articulate broad goals and policies, and delegate most decision-
making to the local district and park units. 

 
(2) State Parks should be reorganized to make it easier to get things done.  Currently, 

State Parks organizationally consists of quasi-independent silos based on function or 

130



specialty, as compared to a model where teams are built around each park unit and 
district   Under the current system, for every proposal to improve a park, many people 
within the Department have the ability to say no, but few have the authority and incentive 
to say yes.    

 
(3) Local partners to State Parks should be encouraged, supported and delegated 

authority commensurate with their abilities.  When entering into agreements with 
local partners, State Parks has treated their local partners as concessionaires, even though 
many local partners are public agencies with extensive independent legal authorities and 
responsibilities.  State Parks has been reluctant to cede any of their review and control 
authorities to their public agency partners.  This has limited the effectiveness of these 
partnerships. 

 
In addition to the above general principles, we would like to share some of what we have learned at 
the day-to-day operational level. 
 

(1) Maintenance and operations functions at park units should be merged 
administratively.  Maintenance and operations functions within State Parks are currently 
organized into separate silos.  One of the reasons the Napa County Regional Park and 
Open Space District has been successful in cutting costs is that its park staff operates as a 
team.  While each member of staff has their own particular expertise, and areas of 
primary focus, team members shift between operations and maintenance roles as needed, 
providing more flexibility with work scheduling. 

 
(2) The Service Center is a good concept but it doesn’t work.  Several months ago our 

agency needed to prepare architectural drawings for repairing some abandoned cabins.  
We obtained three bids, one from the Service Center and two from private architectural 
firms.  The Service Center proposal was twice as expensive as the most expensive of the 
private firms, and the Service Center could not offer a work schedule or completion date.  
The Service Center ought to be able to beat the competition, given its easy access to 
existing plans and data and its knowledge of park practices and policies.  Serious 
attention should be given to reforming the Service Center so that it provides competitive 
services. 

 
(3) The Project Evaluation Form (PEF) process impedes initiative.  Too many routine 

repair projects get caught up in and delayed by the PEF process.  Projects that in most 
localities would be classified as statutorily or categorically exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act end up requiring detailed plans and often lengthy circulation 
of documents for sequential approval by various resource specialists.  The PEF approval 
process takes control of project timing away from the project proponent and makes it 
subject to other people’s (often excessive) workloads.   

  
(4) An essential element in encouraging innovation and entrepreneurship at park units 

and in districts is to allow them to retain control of any revenues and savings they 
realize.   There are many ways to do this.  Local partners with operating agreements with 
State Parks are able to retain and reinvest earnings into the parks they manage.  
Cooperating associations also do this to the extent that they sponsor events and programs 
that generate income.   However, State Parks does not have the same flexibility; the use 
of revenues it generates requires appropriation by the Legislature and Governor.  Serious 
consideration should be given to allowing park units and districts to retain and reinvest 

131



entrepreneurial profits, rather than vacuuming up those revenues and depositing them in 
the State’s General Fund.  Unless and until this changes, strengthening and expanding 
agreements with local partners is the only practical way to ensure that new revenues from 
park innovations gets reinvested in the parks. 

 
We appreciate your efforts to improve California’s truly special State Parks system.  Please feel free 
to contact our General Manager John Woodbury (707-259-5933) if you have further questions about 
our experiences as a local partner to State Parks. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Dave Finigan 
President 
Board of Directors 
 

 
   

 
  

 

132



 
 
 
 
STAFF REPORT 
 
Date:    June 9, 2014 
Agenda Item: 4.E 
Subject: Update on formation of the Park and Open Space District Advisory Committee, and 

extension of time to receive nominations 
 
Recommendation 
 

1. Find that this action is exempt from the California Code of Regulations (State CEQA 
Guidelines) 

2. Approve an extension of time to receive nominations as described below. 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION  
 
The proposed action is not a project pursuant to the California Code of Regulations 15378 (State 
CEQA Guidelines). 

 
Background 
 
The Board at its March meeting authorized formation of the Park and Open Space District Advisory 
Committee to review the past work of the District and develop recommendations for the future 
direction and funding of the District.  At the time, staff set May 26th as the deadline for submitting 
applications to the District, and June 30 as the deadline for nominations from the County Board of 
Supervisors and each City Council. 
 
At this time, the District has received 10 applications.  It is not yet known how many other 
applications may have been submitted directly to either the Supervisors or City Councils.  The 
applicants and their residency are as follows: 
 
Name   District/Ward  Jurisdiction 
Denise Britton   3  unincorporated 
Phil Blake   1  Napa  
Jeff Dodd   1  Napa 
John Glaser   1  Napa 
Roberta Oswald  3  St. Helena 
Stu Williams   3  unincorporated 
Bob Russell   5  Napa 
James Haller   5  unincorporated 
Ginny Simms   5  Napa 
Jim King   4  Napa 

133



 
Due to scheduling logistics, it is possible that the nominations from the Board of Supervisors and 
the City Councils will not be complete by June 30th.  Also, until these nominations are made, it 
makes little sense to cut off applications made directly to the District.  Since it is to the District’s 
benefit to have as large an applicant pool as possible, staff recommends that the District continue to 
accept applications directly, as well as nominations from the other agencies, up until the time the 
full Board actually makes the appointments.  All applications and nominations received in time for 
consideration at the July 14th Board meeting will be presented to the Board at that time to either 
make the committee appointments or continue the process to the August Board meeting. 
 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   
 
 

134



 
 
 
 
 
STAFF REPORT 
 
Date:    June 9, 2014  
Item:  4.F 
Subject: Receipt of report on expenditures, encumbrances, donations, and grants approved 

by District staff 
 
Recommendation 

 
Receive the report. 

 
Background 
 
Section III.A.(7) of the District By-laws authorizes the General Manager to bind the district for 
supplies, materials, labor, and other valuable consideration, in accordance with board policy and 
the adopted District budget, up to $10,000 for non-construction purposes and up to $25,000 for 
construction purposes, provided that all such expenditures are subsequently reported to the Board 
of Directors. Section III.A.(8) of the By-laws authorizes the General Manager to apply for grants and 
receive donations, subject to reporting such actions to the Board of Directors.  
 
Attached is a report showing all District expenditures for May 1 through June 11, 2014.   
 
In addition, the General Manager has approved the following contracts: 

 
Kurt Stahr and Associations.   Revised appraisal for portion of Kirkland Ranch.      $3,500 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

135



Account 52100 - Administration Services
 

05/07/2014 0000252817 Reclass to SP 85010-08            0.00      70,668.59
_______________ _______________

Total For 52100 - Administration Services           0.00      70,668.59

Beginning Balance:     162,852.23

Total Activity:     -70,668.59

Ending Balance:      92,183.64
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52125 - Accounting/Auditing Services           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:      12,255.49

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:      12,255.49
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52140 - Legal Services           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:      14,276.25

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:      14,276.25
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52490 - Other Professional Services
 

05/08/2014 AP00252886 PARK070114CJYIP 4/14 000275504/14 SERVICES 23180 CJYIPASSOC       3,302.24           0.00

05/29/2014 AP00253469 PARK140314Stahr 4/14 00029953JOB 14-0301 11754 STAHRASSOC       8,500.00           0.00

05/29/2014 AP00253469 PARK070114CJYIP 5/14 000299545/14 SERVICES 23180 CJYIPASSOC       1,864.56           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 52490 - Other Professional Services      13,666.80           0.00

Beginning Balance:      25,553.25

Total Activity:      13,666.80

Report ID:  GLS7505 GENERAL LEDGER DETAIL TRANSACTIONS Page No. 1
Bus. Unit: NAPCO--County of Napa For Fiscal Year2014 Run Date 06/04/2014
Fund: 8500 N C Parks & Open Space Distr Period 11 to  12 Run Time 07:18:37
Dept: 8500000Parks-Administration

Program:  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Journal Date Journal ID Journal Description   Voucher Desc Reference Vendor ID Name Seq Debit Credit Balance

136



Ending Balance:      39,220.05
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52705 - Insurance - Premiums           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:      12,858.41

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:      12,858.41
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52840 - Permits/License Fees           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:         -15.00

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:         -15.00
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52900 - Training/Conference Expenses
 

05/14/2014 AP00253073 5/8 BAOSC CONF 000281945/8 BAOSC CONF 24717 CAHILL,CHR          88.60           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 52900 - Training/Conference Expenses          88.60           0.00

Beginning Balance:         425.00

Total Activity:          88.60

Ending Balance:         513.60
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52905 - Business Travel/Mileage           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:       1,005.13

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:       1,005.13
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 53100 - Office Supplies           0.00           0.00

Report ID:  GLS7505 GENERAL LEDGER DETAIL TRANSACTIONS Page No. 2
Bus. Unit: NAPCO--County of Napa For Fiscal Year2014 Run Date 06/04/2014
Fund: 8500 N C Parks & Open Space Distr Period 11 to  12 Run Time 07:18:37
Dept: 8500000Parks-Administration

Program:  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Journal Date Journal ID Journal Description   Voucher Desc Reference Vendor ID Name Seq Debit Credit Balance

137



Beginning Balance:         803.36

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:         803.36
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 53120 - Memberships/Certifications           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:       1,000.00

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:       1,000.00
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 53205 - Utilities - Electric           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:           0.00

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:           0.00
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 53410 - Computer Equipment/Accessories           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:         561.33

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:         561.33
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 53600 - Special Departmental Expense
 

05/05/2014 AP00252726 Stickers, signs, cameras, etc 00026823       2,238.04           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 53600 - Special Departmental Expense       2,238.04           0.00

Beginning Balance:         941.97

Total Activity:       2,238.04

Ending Balance:       3,180.01

Report ID:  GLS7505 GENERAL LEDGER DETAIL TRANSACTIONS Page No. 3
Bus. Unit: NAPCO--County of Napa For Fiscal Year2014 Run Date 06/04/2014
Fund: 8500 N C Parks & Open Space Distr Period 11 to  12 Run Time 07:18:37
Dept: 8500000Parks-Administration

Program:  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Journal Date Journal ID Journal Description   Voucher Desc Reference Vendor ID Name Seq Debit Credit Balance

138



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
TOTAL EXPENSE      15,993.44      70,668.59     177,842.27
==========================================================================================================================================================================
 

Report ID:  GLS7505 GENERAL LEDGER DETAIL TRANSACTIONS Page No. 4
Bus. Unit: NAPCO--County of Napa For Fiscal Year2014 Run Date 06/04/2014
Fund: 8500 N C Parks & Open Space Distr Period 11 to  12 Run Time 07:18:37
Dept: 8500000Parks-Administration

Program:  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Journal Date Journal ID Journal Description   Voucher Desc Reference Vendor ID Name Seq Debit Credit Balance

139



          0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:      33,208.94

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:      33,208.94
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52325 - Waste Disposal Services
 

05/08/2014 AP00252886 United Site 4/30/14-5/27/14 00027296Cust #CAN-0973 20925 UNITEDSITE         115.62           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 52325 - Waste Disposal Services         115.62           0.00

Beginning Balance:       2,815.55

Total Activity:         115.62

Ending Balance:       2,931.17
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52360 - Construction Services
 

05/08/2014 AP00252886 PARK140114MorganFence 100%COMP 00027554FENCE & GATE I 18376 MORGANFENC      10,900.00           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 52360 - Construction Services      10,900.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:     187,359.39

Total Activity:      10,900.00

Ending Balance:     198,259.39
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52490 - Other Professional Services
 

05/08/2014 AP00252886 PARK070114CJYIP 4/14 000275504/14 SERVICES 23180 CJYIPASSOC       1,761.80           0.00

05/29/2014 AP00253469 PARK070114CJYIP 5/14 000299545/14 SERVICES 23180 CJYIPASSOC       1,419.44           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 52490 - Other Professional Services       3,181.24           0.00

Report ID:  GLS7505 GENERAL LEDGER DETAIL TRANSACTIONS Page No. 5
Bus. Unit: NAPCO--County of Napa For Fiscal Year2014 Run Date 06/04/2014
Fund: 8500 N C Parks & Open Space Distr Period 11 to  12 Run Time 07:18:37
Dept: 8501000Parks-Moore Creek

Program:  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Journal Date Journal ID Journal Description   Voucher Desc Reference Vendor ID Name Seq Debit Credit Balance

140



Beginning Balance:      14,931.17

Total Activity:       3,181.24

Ending Balance:      18,112.41
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52505 - Maintenance-Buildings/Improvem           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:         183.60

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:         183.60
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52525 - Maintenance-Infrastructure/Lan
 

05/19/2014 AP00253203 Gorilla-tree service 00028661Inv #2557 - 26 11573 GORILLATRE       2,495.00           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 52525 - Maintenance-Infrastructure/Lan       2,495.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:       1,012.55

Total Activity:       2,495.00

Ending Balance:       3,507.55
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52700 - Insurance - Liability           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:         948.45

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:         948.45
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52800 - Communications/Telephone
 

05/22/2014 AP00253437 HughesNet 5/12/14-6/12/14 00029286Acct #DSS88360 17372 HUGHESNETW          76.59           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 52800 - Communications/Telephone          76.59           0.00

Report ID:  GLS7505 GENERAL LEDGER DETAIL TRANSACTIONS Page No. 6
Bus. Unit: NAPCO--County of Napa For Fiscal Year2014 Run Date 06/04/2014
Fund: 8500 N C Parks & Open Space Distr Period 11 to  12 Run Time 07:18:37
Dept: 8501000Parks-Moore Creek

Program:  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Journal Date Journal ID Journal Description   Voucher Desc Reference Vendor ID Name Seq Debit Credit Balance

141



Beginning Balance:         765.90

Total Activity:          76.59

Ending Balance:         842.49
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52840 - Permits/License Fees           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:         353.66

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:         353.66
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52905 - Business Travel/Mileage           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:         207.15

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:         207.15
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 53100 - Office Supplies           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:          98.86

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:          98.86
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 53205 - Utilities - Electric
 

05/05/2014 AP00252726 PG&E 3/26/14 - 4/24/14 00026812Acct #00997592 945 PAC-GAS-00          77.90           0.00

05/27/2014 AP00253454 PG&E 4/25/14-5/16/14 00029604Acct #00997592 945 PAC-GAS-00          85.57           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 53205 - Utilities - Electric         163.47           0.00

Beginning Balance:         944.09

Total Activity:         163.47

Report ID:  GLS7505 GENERAL LEDGER DETAIL TRANSACTIONS Page No. 7
Bus. Unit: NAPCO--County of Napa For Fiscal Year2014 Run Date 06/04/2014
Fund: 8500 N C Parks & Open Space Distr Period 11 to  12 Run Time 07:18:37
Dept: 8501000Parks-Moore Creek

Program:  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Journal Date Journal ID Journal Description   Voucher Desc Reference Vendor ID Name Seq Debit Credit Balance

142



Ending Balance:       1,107.56
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 53250 - Fuel           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:          61.96

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:          61.96
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 53345 - Construction Supplies/Material
 

05/22/2014 AP00253437 Chino-kiosk supplies 00029294         310.04           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 53345 - Construction Supplies/Material         310.04           0.00

Beginning Balance:           0.00

Total Activity:         310.04

Ending Balance:         310.04
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 53350 - Maintenance Supplies
 

05/05/2014 AP00252726 Central Vly-April 2014 00026804Cust #NAPACORP 219 CENTRALVAL         459.01           0.00

05/08/2014 AP00252886 Diamond Pool - chlorine 00027303Acct #55555555 25498 DIAMONDQUA          74.42           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 53350 - Maintenance Supplies         533.43           0.00

Beginning Balance:       2,101.40

Total Activity:         533.43

Ending Balance:       2,634.83
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 53400 - Minor Equipment/Small Tools
 

Report ID:  GLS7505 GENERAL LEDGER DETAIL TRANSACTIONS Page No. 8
Bus. Unit: NAPCO--County of Napa For Fiscal Year2014 Run Date 06/04/2014
Fund: 8500 N C Parks & Open Space Distr Period 11 to  12 Run Time 07:18:37
Dept: 8501000Parks-Moore Creek

Program:  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Journal Date Journal ID Journal Description   Voucher Desc Reference Vendor ID Name Seq Debit Credit Balance

143



05/22/2014 AP00253437 Chino - fan/gas can 00029294Reimbursement 23180 CJYIPASSOC         509.75           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 53400 - Minor Equipment/Small Tools         509.75           0.00

Beginning Balance:       1,431.56

Total Activity:         509.75

Ending Balance:       1,941.31
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 53600 - Special Departmental Expense
 

05/05/2014 AP00252726 Chino- Volunteer food 00026823Reimbursement 23180 CJYIPASSOC         198.82           0.00

05/22/2014 AP00253437 Chino-volunteer food 00029294         131.03           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 53600 - Special Departmental Expense         329.85           0.00

Beginning Balance:       1,253.32

Total Activity:         329.85

Ending Balance:       1,583.17
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 54500 - Taxes and Assessments           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:         444.61

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:         444.61
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
TOTAL EXPENSE      18,614.99           0.00     266,737.15
==========================================================================================================================================================================
 

Report ID:  GLS7505 GENERAL LEDGER DETAIL TRANSACTIONS Page No. 9
Bus. Unit: NAPCO--County of Napa For Fiscal Year2014 Run Date 06/04/2014
Fund: 8500 N C Parks & Open Space Distr Period 11 to  12 Run Time 07:18:37
Dept: 8501000Parks-Moore Creek

Program:  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Journal Date Journal ID Journal Description   Voucher Desc Reference Vendor ID Name Seq Debit Credit Balance

144



          0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:       1,197.39

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:       1,197.39
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52490 - Other Professional Services
 

05/08/2014 AP00252886 PARK070114CJYIP 4/14 000275504/14 SERVICES 23180 CJYIPASSOC         470.16           0.00

05/29/2014 AP00253469 PARK070114CJYIP 5/14 000299545/14 SERVICES 23180 CJYIPASSOC         100.00           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 52490 - Other Professional Services         570.16           0.00

Beginning Balance:       3,861.54

Total Activity:         570.16

Ending Balance:       4,431.70
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 53100 - Office Supplies           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:         374.83

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:         374.83
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 53350 - Maintenance Supplies           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:          44.42

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:          44.42
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
TOTAL EXPENSE         570.16           0.00       6,048.34
==========================================================================================================================================================================
 

Report ID:  GLS7505 GENERAL LEDGER DETAIL TRANSACTIONS Page No. 10
Bus. Unit: NAPCO--County of Napa For Fiscal Year2014 Run Date 06/04/2014
Fund: 8500 N C Parks & Open Space Distr Period 11 to  12 Run Time 07:18:37
Dept: 8501001Parks-Oat Hill Mine Trail

Program:  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Journal Date Journal ID Journal Description   Voucher Desc Reference Vendor ID Name Seq Debit Credit Balance

145



          0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:       9,931.41

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:       9,931.41
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52490 - Other Professional Services
 

05/29/2014 AP00253469 PARK070114CJYIP 5/14 000299545/14 SERVICES 23180 CJYIPASSOC         163.44           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 52490 - Other Professional Services         163.44           0.00

Beginning Balance:       1,717.88

Total Activity:         163.44

Ending Balance:       1,881.32
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52905 - Business Travel/Mileage           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:         217.14

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:         217.14
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
TOTAL EXPENSE         163.44           0.00      12,029.87
==========================================================================================================================================================================
 

Report ID:  GLS7505 GENERAL LEDGER DETAIL TRANSACTIONS Page No. 11
Bus. Unit: NAPCO--County of Napa For Fiscal Year2014 Run Date 06/04/2014
Fund: 8500 N C Parks & Open Space Distr Period 11 to  12 Run Time 07:18:37
Dept: 8501002Parks-Napa River and Bay Trail

Program:  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Journal Date Journal ID Journal Description   Voucher Desc Reference Vendor ID Name Seq Debit Credit Balance

146



          0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:      12,575.48

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:      12,575.48
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52360 - Construction Services
 

05/20/2014 AP00253293 PARK131414Psomas 2-3/14 00028700PROJ 6NAP01010 33202 PSOMAS-001         269.50           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 52360 - Construction Services         269.50           0.00

Beginning Balance:      26,445.50

Total Activity:         269.50

Ending Balance:      26,715.00
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52490 - Other Professional Services           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:          75.50

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:          75.50
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
TOTAL EXPENSE         269.50           0.00      39,365.98
==========================================================================================================================================================================
 

Report ID:  GLS7505 GENERAL LEDGER DETAIL TRANSACTIONS Page No. 12
Bus. Unit: NAPCO--County of Napa For Fiscal Year2014 Run Date 06/04/2014
Fund: 8500 N C Parks & Open Space Distr Period 11 to  12 Run Time 07:18:37
Dept: 8501003Parks-Camp Berryessa

Program:  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Journal Date Journal ID Journal Description   Voucher Desc Reference Vendor ID Name Seq Debit Credit Balance

147



          0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:         336.41

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:         336.41
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52490 - Other Professional Services
 

05/08/2014 AP00252886 PARK070114CJYIP 4/14 000275504/14 SERVICES 23180 CJYIPASSOC         283.60           0.00

05/29/2014 AP00253469 PARK070114CJYIP 5/14 000299545/14 SERVICES 23180 CJYIPASSOC         283.60           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 52490 - Other Professional Services         567.20           0.00

Beginning Balance:         150.00

Total Activity:         567.20

Ending Balance:         717.20
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
TOTAL EXPENSE         567.20           0.00       1,053.61
==========================================================================================================================================================================
 

Report ID:  GLS7505 GENERAL LEDGER DETAIL TRANSACTIONS Page No. 13
Bus. Unit: NAPCO--County of Napa For Fiscal Year2014 Run Date 06/04/2014
Fund: 8500 N C Parks & Open Space Distr Period 11 to  12 Run Time 07:18:37
Dept: 8501004Parks-Berryessa Vista

Program:  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Journal Date Journal ID Journal Description   Voucher Desc Reference Vendor ID Name Seq Debit Credit Balance

148



          0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:       1,770.81

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:       1,770.81
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52325 - Waste Disposal Services
 

05/08/2014 AP00252886 United Site 4/24/14-5/21/14 00027300Cust #CAN-0973 20925 UNITEDSITE         151.45           0.00

05/19/2014 AP00253203 Upper Vly Disp-April 2014 00028662Acct #01-48644 19694 UPPERVALLE         101.52           0.00

05/22/2014 AP00253437 United - extra service 00029284Cust #CAN-0973 20925 UNITEDSITE          40.32           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 52325 - Waste Disposal Services         293.29           0.00

Beginning Balance:       2,904.31

Total Activity:         293.29

Ending Balance:       3,197.60
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52490 - Other Professional Services
 

05/01/2014 AP00252627 PARK081214 OPTIONS3 3/14 000267343/14 services 24404 OPTIONS3-0         760.00           0.00

05/08/2014 AP00252886 PARK070114CJYIP 4/14 000275504/14 SERVICES 23180 CJYIPASSOC         948.16           0.00

05/22/2014 AP00253437 RCD-March-April 2014 00029289Landsmart Eco 1028 NAPACO-RES       1,868.40           0.00

05/29/2014 AP00253469 PARK070114CJYIP 5/14 000299545/14 SERVICES 23180 CJYIPASSOC         586.96           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 52490 - Other Professional Services       4,163.52           0.00

Beginning Balance:      16,752.49

Total Activity:       4,163.52

Ending Balance:      20,916.01
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

Report ID:  GLS7505 GENERAL LEDGER DETAIL TRANSACTIONS Page No. 14
Bus. Unit: NAPCO--County of Napa For Fiscal Year2014 Run Date 06/04/2014
Fund: 8500 N C Parks & Open Space Distr Period 11 to  12 Run Time 07:18:37
Dept: 8501005Parks-Napa River Ecological Rs

Program:  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Journal Date Journal ID Journal Description   Voucher Desc Reference Vendor ID Name Seq Debit Credit Balance

149



Account 52905 - Business Travel/Mileage           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:          23.52

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:          23.52
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 53205 - Utilities - Electric           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:           3.03

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:           3.03
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
TOTAL EXPENSE       4,456.81           0.00      25,910.97
==========================================================================================================================================================================
 

Report ID:  GLS7505 GENERAL LEDGER DETAIL TRANSACTIONS Page No. 15
Bus. Unit: NAPCO--County of Napa For Fiscal Year2014 Run Date 06/04/2014
Fund: 8500 N C Parks & Open Space Distr Period 11 to  12 Run Time 07:18:37
Dept: 8501005Parks-Napa River Ecological Rs

Program:  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Journal Date Journal ID Journal Description   Voucher Desc Reference Vendor ID Name Seq Debit Credit Balance

150



          0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:          98.82

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:          98.82
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
TOTAL EXPENSE           0.00           0.00          98.82
==========================================================================================================================================================================
 

Report ID:  GLS7505 GENERAL LEDGER DETAIL TRANSACTIONS Page No. 16
Bus. Unit: NAPCO--County of Napa For Fiscal Year2014 Run Date 06/04/2014
Fund: 8500 N C Parks & Open Space Distr Period 11 to  12 Run Time 07:18:37
Dept: 8501006Parks-Vine Trail

Program:  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Journal Date Journal ID Journal Description   Voucher Desc Reference Vendor ID Name Seq Debit Credit Balance

151



          0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:      10,820.01

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:      10,820.01
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52360 - Construction Services           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:      10,956.15

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:      10,956.15
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52490 - Other Professional Services
 

05/08/2014 AP00252886 PARK070114CJYIP 4/14 000275504/14 SERVICES 23180 CJYIPASSOC       1,039.04           0.00

05/29/2014 AP00253469 PARK070114CJYIP 5/14 000299545/14 SERVICES 23180 CJYIPASSOC         336.40           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 52490 - Other Professional Services       1,375.44           0.00

Beginning Balance:       1,955.05

Total Activity:       1,375.44

Ending Balance:       3,330.49
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52840 - Permits/License Fees           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:         220.35

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:         220.35
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52905 - Business Travel/Mileage           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:          38.85

Total Activity:           0.00

Report ID:  GLS7505 GENERAL LEDGER DETAIL TRANSACTIONS Page No. 17
Bus. Unit: NAPCO--County of Napa For Fiscal Year2014 Run Date 06/04/2014
Fund: 8500 N C Parks & Open Space Distr Period 11 to  12 Run Time 07:18:37
Dept: 8501007Parks-Putah Creek

Program:  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Journal Date Journal ID Journal Description   Voucher Desc Reference Vendor ID Name Seq Debit Credit Balance

152



Ending Balance:          38.85
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 53350 - Maintenance Supplies           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:          40.84

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:          40.84
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
TOTAL EXPENSE       1,375.44           0.00      25,406.69
==========================================================================================================================================================================
 

Report ID:  GLS7505 GENERAL LEDGER DETAIL TRANSACTIONS Page No. 18
Bus. Unit: NAPCO--County of Napa For Fiscal Year2014 Run Date 06/04/2014
Fund: 8500 N C Parks & Open Space Distr Period 11 to  12 Run Time 07:18:37
Dept: 8501007Parks-Putah Creek

Program:  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Journal Date Journal ID Journal Description   Voucher Desc Reference Vendor ID Name Seq Debit Credit Balance

153



 Account 52100 - Administration Services

 

05/07/2014 0000252817 July-Dec 2013 Salaries       70,668.59           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 52100 - Administration Services      70,668.59           0.00

Beginning Balance:           0.00

Total Activity:      70,668.59

Ending Balance:      70,668.59
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52325 - Waste Disposal Services
 

05/05/2014 AP00252726 United Site 4/17/14-5/14/14 00026815Cust #CAN-0973 20925 UNITEDSITE         486.70           0.00

05/19/2014 AP00253203 Upper Vly Disp-April 2014 00028663Acct #01-13452 19694 UPPERVALLE         856.95           0.00

05/27/2014 AP00253454 United 5/15/14-6/11/14 00029545Cust #CAN-0973 20925 UNITEDSITE         486.70           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 52325 - Waste Disposal Services       1,830.35           0.00

Beginning Balance:      12,389.99

Total Activity:       1,830.35

Ending Balance:      14,220.34
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52345 - Janitorial Services
 

05/08/2014 AP00252886 Cash & Carry 00027306Acct #60124600 34310 CASH&CARRY          78.17           0.00

05/22/2014 AP00253437 C&C - supplies 00029297Acct #60124600 34310 CASH&CARRY         218.83           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 52345 - Janitorial Services         297.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:         200.00

Total Activity:         297.00

Report ID:  GLS7505 GENERAL LEDGER DETAIL TRANSACTIONS Page No. 19
Bus. Unit: NAPCO--County of Napa For Fiscal Year2014 Run Date 06/04/2014
Fund: 8500 N C Parks & Open Space Distr Period 11 to  12 Run Time 07:18:37
Dept: 8501008Parks-State Parks

Program:  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Journal Date Journal ID Journal Description   Voucher Desc Reference Vendor ID Name Seq Debit Credit Balance

154



Ending Balance:         497.00
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52360 - Construction Services           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:      23,250.04

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:      23,250.04
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52490 - Other Professional Services
 

05/05/2014 AP00252726 ATP - April 2014 00026814Inv #5017 - Bo 33928 ADVANTAGET          40.00           0.00

05/08/2014 AP00252886 ATP - March 2014 00027309Acct #746-0150 33928 ADVANTAGET          40.00           0.00

05/20/2014 AP00253293 PARK120814Marioni 4/14 000287024/14 SERVICES 33711 MARIONI,JE       1,930.27           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 52490 - Other Professional Services       2,010.27           0.00

Beginning Balance:      11,208.70

Total Activity:       2,010.27

Ending Balance:      13,218.97
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52500 - Maintenance-Equipment
 

05/08/2014 AP00252886 A&T-repair golf cart charger 00027311Bothe State Pa 8842 ATTOWING-0         196.56           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 52500 - Maintenance-Equipment         196.56           0.00

Beginning Balance:           0.00

Total Activity:         196.56

Ending Balance:         196.56
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52505 - Maintenance-Buildings/Improvem

Report ID:  GLS7505 GENERAL LEDGER DETAIL TRANSACTIONS Page No. 20
Bus. Unit: NAPCO--County of Napa For Fiscal Year2014 Run Date 06/04/2014
Fund: 8500 N C Parks & Open Space Distr Period 11 to  12 Run Time 07:18:37
Dept: 8501008Parks-State Parks

Program:  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Journal Date Journal ID Journal Description   Voucher Desc Reference Vendor ID Name Seq Debit Credit Balance

155



 Account 52505 - Maintenance-Buildings/Improvem

 

05/09/2014 AP00252911 SupLeakDetBotheStPkPoolRepair 000276104/17/14 Bothe 36315 SUPERIORLE       4,500.00           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 52505 - Maintenance-Buildings/Improvem       4,500.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:           0.00

Total Activity:       4,500.00

Ending Balance:       4,500.00
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52520 - Maintenance-Vehicles           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:       3,476.90

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:       3,476.90
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52525 - Maintenance-Infrastructure/Lan           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:       4,341.54

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:       4,341.54
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52705 - Insurance - Premiums
 

05/05/2014 AP00252726 Markel Insurance -SP Ins 00026801Policy #7002RS 33633 MARKELINSU       1,340.00           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 52705 - Insurance - Premiums       1,340.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:           0.00

Total Activity:       1,340.00

Ending Balance:       1,340.00
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Report ID:  GLS7505 GENERAL LEDGER DETAIL TRANSACTIONS Page No. 21
Bus. Unit: NAPCO--County of Napa For Fiscal Year2014 Run Date 06/04/2014
Fund: 8500 N C Parks & Open Space Distr Period 11 to  12 Run Time 07:18:37
Dept: 8501008Parks-State Parks

Program:  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Journal Date Journal ID Journal Description   Voucher Desc Reference Vendor ID Name Seq Debit Credit Balance

156



 
Account 52800 - Communications/Telephone
 

05/19/2014 AP00253203 Telepacific -May 2014 00028665Acct #133326 34480 TELEPACIFI         551.66           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 52800 - Communications/Telephone         551.66           0.00

Beginning Balance:       4,860.46

Total Activity:         551.66

Ending Balance:       5,412.12
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52825 - Bank Charges
 

05/09/2014 0000252908 Heartland credit card fees-WFB 5/1/14          10.39           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 52825 - Bank Charges          10.39           0.00

Beginning Balance:       1,447.08

Total Activity:          10.39

Ending Balance:       1,457.47
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52900 - Training/Conference Expenses           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:         439.98

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:         439.98
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 52905 - Business Travel/Mileage
 

05/13/2014 AP00253028 7898686642 APR-2014 USAGE 000279237898686642 12088 CHEVRONPRO         331.02           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 52905 - Business Travel/Mileage         331.02           0.00

Report ID:  GLS7505 GENERAL LEDGER DETAIL TRANSACTIONS Page No. 22
Bus. Unit: NAPCO--County of Napa For Fiscal Year2014 Run Date 06/04/2014
Fund: 8500 N C Parks & Open Space Distr Period 11 to  12 Run Time 07:18:37
Dept: 8501008Parks-State Parks

Program:  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Journal Date Journal ID Journal Description   Voucher Desc Reference Vendor ID Name Seq Debit Credit Balance

157



Beginning Balance:       2,162.31

Total Activity:         331.02

Ending Balance:       2,493.33
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 53100 - Office Supplies           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:       3,813.32

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:       3,813.32
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 53205 - Utilities - Electric
 

05/27/2014 AP00253454 PG&E 4/15/14-5/14/14 00029605Acct #21728318 945 PAC-GAS-00          43.91           0.00

05/27/2014 AP00253454 PG&E 4/15/14-5/14/14 00029606Acct #67654031 945 PAC-GAS-00          35.31           0.00

05/27/2014 AP00253454 PG&E 4/16/14-5/15/14 00029607Acct #48314069 945 PAC-GAS-00         141.08           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 53205 - Utilities - Electric         220.30           0.00

Beginning Balance:      11,820.81

Total Activity:         220.30

Ending Balance:      12,041.11
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 53210 - Utilities - Propane           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:         309.71

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:         309.71
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 53250 - Fuel
 

Report ID:  GLS7505 GENERAL LEDGER DETAIL TRANSACTIONS Page No. 23
Bus. Unit: NAPCO--County of Napa For Fiscal Year2014 Run Date 06/04/2014
Fund: 8500 N C Parks & Open Space Distr Period 11 to  12 Run Time 07:18:37
Dept: 8501008Parks-State Parks

Program:  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Journal Date Journal ID Journal Description   Voucher Desc Reference Vendor ID Name Seq Debit Credit Balance

158



05/22/2014 AP00253437 S. Jones - fuel 00029280Reimbursement 33857 JONES,SAND          20.00           0.00
Account 53250 - Fuel

 

05/27/2014 AP00253454 S. Jones - fuel 00029540         135.95           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 53250 - Fuel         155.95           0.00

Beginning Balance:         578.87

Total Activity:         155.95

Ending Balance:         734.82
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 53330 - Janitorial Supplies           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:       3,258.18

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:       3,258.18
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 53345 - Construction Supplies/Material           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:         218.28

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:         218.28
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 53350 - Maintenance Supplies
 

05/05/2014 AP00252726 Central Vly-April 2014 00026804Cust #NAPACORP 219 CENTRALVAL         995.52           0.00

05/05/2014 AP00252726 Steves Hardware-April 2014 00026817Acct #31248 1222 STEVESHARD         360.26           0.00

05/08/2014 AP00252886 Browns Auto - supplies 00027301Acct #8537 158 BROWNSAUTO         401.79           0.00

05/19/2014 AP00253203 Belkorp-supply parts 00028657Acct #25020 34758 BELKORPAG-          72.03           0.00

05/19/2014 AP00253203 Belkorp-tractor repair parts 00028659Acct #25020 34758 BELKORPAG-         174.16           0.00

05/19/2014 AP00253203 Redwood vacuum-supplies 00028664Napa County Pa 34228 REDWOODVAC         130.59           0.00

Report ID:  GLS7505 GENERAL LEDGER DETAIL TRANSACTIONS Page No. 24
Bus. Unit: NAPCO--County of Napa For Fiscal Year2014 Run Date 06/04/2014
Fund: 8500 N C Parks & Open Space Distr Period 11 to  12 Run Time 07:18:37
Dept: 8501008Parks-State Parks

Program:  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Journal Date Journal ID Journal Description   Voucher Desc Reference Vendor ID Name Seq Debit Credit Balance

159



05/22/2014 AP00253437 Diamond-pool supplies 00029287Bothe State Pa 25498 DIAMONDQUA         326.25           0.00
Account 53350 - Maintenance Supplies

 

05/27/2014 AP00253454 S. Jones-supplies 00029540Reimbursement 33857 JONES,SAND         160.86           0.00

05/27/2014 AP00253454 Steves Hardware-supplies 00029543Acct #31248 1222 STEVESHARD         517.24           0.00

05/27/2014 AP00253454 J. Woodbury-netting 00029544Reimbursement 19796 WOODBURY,J          55.88           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 53350 - Maintenance Supplies       3,194.58           0.00

Beginning Balance:      20,783.60

Total Activity:       3,194.58

Ending Balance:      23,978.18
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 53400 - Minor Equipment/Small Tools
 

05/22/2014 AP00253437 Pace-fountain valve 00029282Cust #03700-03 9520 PACESUPPLY         399.49           0.00

05/27/2014 AP00253454 S. Jones-toilet paper disp 00029540         798.94           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 53400 - Minor Equipment/Small Tools       1,198.43           0.00

Beginning Balance:       5,295.62

Total Activity:       1,198.43

Ending Balance:       6,494.05
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 53410 - Computer Equipment/Accessories           0.00           0.00

Beginning Balance:         561.34

Total Activity:           0.00

Ending Balance:         561.34
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Account 53600 - Special Departmental Expense
 

Report ID:  GLS7505 GENERAL LEDGER DETAIL TRANSACTIONS Page No. 25
Bus. Unit: NAPCO--County of Napa For Fiscal Year2014 Run Date 06/04/2014
Fund: 8500 N C Parks & Open Space Distr Period 11 to  12 Run Time 07:18:37
Dept: 8501008Parks-State Parks

Program:  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Journal Date Journal ID Journal Description   Voucher Desc Reference Vendor ID Name Seq Debit Credit Balance

160



05/05/2014 AP00252726 J. Woodbury - Poison Ivy Clean 00026810Reimbursement 19796 WOODBURY,J          76.36           0.00
Account 53600 - Special Departmental Expense

 

05/19/2014 AP00253203 Thurston-shirts 00028666Napa County Re 34609 THURSTONSC         274.71           0.00
_______________ _______________

Total For 53600 - Special Departmental Expense         351.07           0.00

Beginning Balance:       2,619.26

Total Activity:         351.07

Ending Balance:       2,970.33
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
TOTAL EXPENSE      86,856.17           0.00     199,892.16
==========================================================================================================================================================================
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    TOTAL FOR PROGRAM     128,867.15      70,668.59     754,385.86
 

Report ID:  GLS7505 GENERAL LEDGER DETAIL TRANSACTIONS Page No. 26
Bus. Unit: NAPCO--County of Napa For Fiscal Year2014 Run Date 06/04/2014
Fund: 8500 N C Parks & Open Space Distr Period 11 to  12 Run Time 07:18:37
Dept: 8501008Parks-State Parks

Program:  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Journal Date Journal ID Journal Description   Voucher Desc Reference Vendor ID Name Seq Debit Credit Balance

161



Agenda Item 4.G

Name of Project Description Status

Assignment of Tuteur Loop Ridge Trail easement 
from the Bay Area Ridge Trail to the District

Bay/River Trail -- American Canyon to Napa
An 8+ mile recreational trail between the cities of 
American Canyon and Napa generally following the 
Napa River and interior levees of associated 
wetlands.

Phase Two--Green Island Road to Soscol Ferry 
Road

Questa has largely completed a revised draft PUC permit application for a public crossing of the SMART tracks. SMART, NRCA and the PUC have verbally agreed to allow 
the railroad crossing.  LSA Associates has completed a biological survey for the Fagan Marsh area; based on the results, DFG has indicated they do not want the trail 
alignment to follow the levee on the north side of Fagan Marsh; District staff is reviewing the feasibility of an alternative alignment.  DFG, the Bay Trail Project and the Coastal 
Conservancy are funding the prepation of the supplemental environmental analysis for the section of the trail next to DFG's ponds 9 and 10; this work is being handled by 
Ducks Unlimited on behalf of DFG. District staff met with the involved parties on May 25, 2011 and again on November 9, 2011, and thought all questions with this 
supplemental review had been resolved, but no documents have been released for review.   Staff met with BCDC staff in late November 2012 about DFG non-compliance with 
BCDC permit conditions to provide public access around Pond 10.  In January 2013 BCDC issued a letter of non-compliance to DFW, and on March 6, 2013 all of the involved 
parties met to try and get the project back on track.  A follow-up meeting was held April 23, 2013.  In anticipation of DFW completing its work, the Board in March 2013 
approved a new contract with Questa to complete the formal approval of the crossing.   Fish and Wildlife presented a schedule for completion to BCDC at their July 18, 2013 
hearing; the schedule called for their environmental work to be done by the end of this calendar year.  In September 2013 we learned that DFW was now taking the position 
that the trail could not be permitted because endangered salt marsh harvest mice have been found in the area.  On October 11, 2013 the County Public Works Director sent 
correspondence to the Dirctor of DFW expressing concern about DFW's failure to construct the upland area for the airport's Runway Safety Area and the District's trail.  DFW's 
response was received the last week of November 2013.  A follow-up meeting with all of the relevant agencies was held January 30, 2014 where options were discussed but 
no clear decision made.  BCDC received an update on this issue at their March 2014 meeting to assess progress on meeting the permit condition related to public access; they 
extended the deadline for compliance by DFW rather than grant DFW's request to be relieved to the permit condition.   District, airport and DFW staff met in April 2014 to 
discuss the Runway Safety Area, an issue directly related to the proposed trail, and DFW agreed to research the feasibility of transfering ownership of the area to the County.  

Phase Three--Soscol Ferry Road to Napa Pipe All permits and permissions have been obtained, and construction bid documents are done.  Caltrans determined the project is eligible for federal Transportation 
Enhancements grant funds, and approved NEPA review for the project  However, the District was unable to complete Caltrans' extensive paperwork needed to obtain the 
funds, and so the funding that the District had lined up expired.   The District in November 2014 applied to the Bay Trail project for a $120,000 grant to help construct the trail.  
The grant was approved by the Bay Trail Board in December 2014, and the State Coastal Conservancy Board in March 2014.  Staff in late May 204 applied for a new 
encroachment permit from Caltrans.  Construction is planned to take place this summer.

Berryessa Estates
Acquire 480 acres next to Berryessa Estates from 
BLM at no fee through their Recreation and Public 
Purpose Act procedure.  Would serve as a 
wilderness park for local residentseventually be the 
northern trailhead for a trail between Berryess 
Estates and Pope Canyon.

Berryessa Vista

Napa County Regional Park and Open Space District

Plan of Projects

Status Report 
June 9, 2014

The District in 2009 applied to BLM for a no-fee transfer of this property to the District for the no-fee transfer of this property; while this transfer has received conceptual 
approval by BLM staff, the formal approal has dragged; several meetings have been held over the past three years to try and speed to process, but BLM staff has so far had 
higher priorities. CDF crews did extensive fire break work in 2009 through 2011 to protect the residences next to the BLM land.  The Fire Marshall and the Pope Valley 
Volunteer Fire Department have added a proposal to construct a fire substation on a corner of the property.  The Fire Marshall has identifed funding for the fire station, and the 
County Board of Supervisors is now strongly supportive. The District has completed the donation to the District of a small, 0.2 acre property that provides critical access to the 
northeast corner of the property.  District staff in January 2013 met with the Napa County Fire Marshall and the the Calfire Battalion Chief for the area and agreed to jointly 
advocate for BLM action.  In February staff talked with BLM and was assured that processing of the transfer was now beginning.  BLM did a series of site visits June-August, 
2013.  The Bureau of Reclamation in June 2013 asserted that Reclamation has property rights such that BLM is not permitted to transfer the property.  BLM is now projecting 
the transfer will be complete by the end of this calendar year.  In late August Reclamation determined they still retained jurisdiction, but they have committed to completing the 
transfer in the same time frame as BLM would have.  Staff has submitted additional materials to Reclamation which is now processing the permit.  Reclamation provided a 
draft agreement to the District in February 2014 which will lead to Reclamation eventually transferring its interests in the property; District staff responded with comments to the 
draft in early March 2014.

Volunteers working with the District have completed detailed GIS mapping showing all existing roads, creek crossings, vista points and potential campsites.  Continuing 
                              

                              
                              
                                  

                             
            

Bay Area Ridge Trail Tuteur Loop The Bay Area Ridge Trail Council obtained a donated easement from the Tuteur family and constructed a section of Bay Area Ridge Trail adjacent to Skyline Park. The 
Council wishes to transfer this easement to the District.  Staff for the District and Council have gathered all the relevant documents, and initiated discussion with the Tuteur 
family to determine if there are any issues or amendments that should be considered. Next steps are to complete legal review of the documents, make amendments if 
warranted, obtain the consent of the Coastal Conservancy (who funded the trail construction), and then execute the assignment.   Staff is currently reviewing the easement 
location to confirm it connects to the property to the south in the proper location.  

162



Planning and stewardship of this 224 acre wilderness 
park.

Camp Berryessa
Redevelopment of former Boy Scout Camp into a 
group/environmental education camp.

District Non-profit Foundation
Organize a non-profit foundation to raise funds for 
District projects

Lake Hennessey North Shore Trails
Would open up several miles of existing dirt access 
road, and construct approximately 1 mile of new 
single track trail, into a loop trail system on the north 
side of Lake Hennessey, and connecting to the 
planned Moore Creek Open Space Park trail system.

Development of open space park on 673 acres 
acquired by the District adacent to City of Napa 
watershed lands at Lake Hennessey to protect 
habitat, provide recreational trails, and overnight 
camping facilities.

The park opened on June 30, 2013.  The eastern boundary survey and fencing project has been ongoing since late 2013.  Fence posts and wire has been completed for the 
southern half of the boundary, and staff completed the arduous inspection of the northern half posts on the week of May 26, 2014. Wire can now be strung on the northern half 
and the fencing should be complete in June or July of 204. Construction of the remainder of the Valentine Vista Trail was completed by the Forest Trails Alliance in April 2014 
With the help and support of the County Fire Department and County communications technicians, the District has been working to install an emergency communications radio 
and antenna at the Ranch House (which has neither landline nor cellular phone service). The hardware is in place and irt is now just a matter of doing the final install and staff 
training. 

Oat Hill Mine Trail
Various improvements to the historic Oat Hill Mine 
Road

Oat Hill Mine Trail
Transfer of 40 acre parcel from BLM

Rector Ridge/Stags Leap Ridge Trail CEQA on this project was completed several years ago--staff has prepared a draft update to the Negative Declation due to the passage of time since the original approval.  
The project concept has been approved by the District Board  and was positively viewed by the Veterans Home administration   However  Veterans Home staff had been 

                          
                            

           

                       
damage by off-road vehicles trespassing on the property was noted.  The District sent a letter was sent to all property owners in that area introducing the District, explaining the 
deed restriction prohibiting off road vehicles, and asking for their cooperation.  Since then there has been less observed damage, although the problem is not resolved.    Staff 
was planning on installing a gate to restrict OHV access, but this has proven infeasible.  After observing more OHV damage in the summer of 2013, staff is exploring options 
other than a gate to prevent unauthorized OHV use.  The latest plan is to install remote cameras in an attempt to determine who is causing the damage.   No other work is 
anticipated until Lake Berryessa Trail planning is completed, as that is a key step in gaining overland access to the property.  District staff has been meeting with Reclamation, 
their consultants and interested parties on the trail planning and prioritization.  

The litigation holding up this project has been successfully concluded.   Several of the trail sign posts have been vandalized and will need to be replaced.  The District is 
continuing to work with Tuleyome on a project to clean up the Twin Peaks and Corona Mines, in the hopes this may enable the District to safely open the northern Oat Hill Mine 
Trail for public use.   A volunteer  crew did erosion control work  on the trail in January 2013.  Staff and volunteers in February 2013 to did a comprehensive evaluation of 
erosion issues on the trail, and experts from the RCD joined staff for another evaluation in early April.  The City of Calistoga and CalTrans have restarted discussions about 
constructing a roundabout at the intersection of Highway 29 and Silverado Trail; the District is tracking these discussions to ensure that whatever design as adopted will 
provide adequate and safe access to the Oat Hill Mine Trail.  The Bay Area Ridge Trail did some cleanup and minor improvements in late October 2013 to the staging area, 
and the lower 4 miles of the OHMT was dedicated as part of the Ridge Trail on November 10, 2013.  In recent months staff has observed extensive unauthorized construction 
of banks, ramps,  jumps and new trails for mountain bicyclists; staff is attempting to determine who is doing the work. 

Obtain right of way and construct trail to provide 
public access to extensive federal lands on Blue 
Ridge and to Berryessa Peak

Obtained donated trail easement from the Ahmann family to close gaps between existing public lands on Blue Ridge.  A Negative Declaration and Use Permit hearing was 
approved December 16, 2009 by the County Planning Commission.  An Operations and Management Plan has been approved by the property owner and the District.  BLM 
staff on April 11th inspected the proposed trail alignment where it crosses BLM land.  District and BLM staff met on August 5, 2011 to discuss BLM review of this project.  
BLM's biologist inspected the alignment on September 17, 2011.  There have been volunteer trail building work parties have been held numerous times between 2011 and the 
present, and the trail is now done except for signage and a fence crossing.  District staff met with Fish and Game on June 15, 2012 to discuss signage at the trailhead on DFG 
property, and in November 2012 submitted signage language for DFG review.  Staff contacted DFG (now DFW) in February of 2013,again in early April, and again in late 
summer to determine the stafus of their review.  In January 2014 DFW staff responded with an alternative entry sign design, and accepted our fence stile design.  Volunteers 
installed the fence stile in March 2014.  The trail can be officially opened as soon as DFW approves the sign design.

Moore Creek  Park Development

In November, 2009 the Napa City Council directed city staff to work with the District to finalize an agreement for the proposed Hennessey trails. The District approved a 
Mitigated Negative Declaration on February 14, 2011. A final lease agreement and operations plan was approved by the District Board in August 2012, and by the City Council 
in September 2012. Work was completed on the connector trail to Moore Creek in June 2013 and public response to the new trail has been very positive. A plan for fencing 
and signage improvements along the Hennessey north shore has been accepted by the Director of the Water Division. Installation of City-required fencing  was completed in 
mid-April of 2014 and a crew of 12 hearty volunteers completed the installation of required signage and two kiosks on the weekend of May 17th. Minor additional wayfinding 
signage and fixes at an existing horse trough are all that remain to be done at this point. Working reations with the City of Napa have been very positive and If everything goes 
according to plan, the Lake Hennessey Unit should formally open to the public in late summer 2014.

Blue Ridge/Berryess Peak Trail

The District Board has approved the goals, objectives and basic structure for a non-profit foundation to assist the District with fundraising.  Formation of the foundation will 
likely be timed to the opening of Camp Berryessa.

The District in 2008 applied to BLM for a non-fee transfer to the District of a 40 acre parcel at Maple Springs on the Oat Hill Mine Trail; this application is pending.  Staff met 
with BLM in February 2011 to discuss how to speed up this transfer; another meeting with the same topic was held August 5, 2011.  The District is still waiting on BLM to 
process the application.

CEQA and NEPA review is complete, as is the Use Agreement between the District and Reclamation. A grant for $50,000 to help with construction has been provided by the 
Mead Foundation, together with a $1.5 million grant from the State Coastal Conservancy. Reclamation provided comments on the 90% plans on June 24, 2013. The first draft 
100%  version of the planswas submitted in mid October and has been forwarded onto Reclamation for their review and (hopefully) approval. Staff met with the PSOMAS 
project engineer on October 29 to discuss some specification refinements/modifications that may be necessary as a result of a high preliminary draft cost estimate.  Staff is 
continuing to work with PSOMAS to bring estimated costs into line with the funding that is available.  District staff completed additional soils testing in late August in hopes of 
finding soils that would limit the need to on-haul dirt for the Phase 2 septic system. A new water well was dug in October 2012--production is great, and quality is acceptable 
with minor treatment. Reclamation competed their review of the 90% plans and had a very positive meeting with District staff in late March. PSOMAS is now finalizing the 
SWPPP. PSOMAS has assigned a new project manager and as of the week of June 1, significant progress had been made on refining the project budget and proceeding 
towards 100% plans. Substantial cost cutting will be necessary, but it now seems reasonable to expect a summer 2014 groundbreaking.  Construction groundbreaking will 
hopefully be in the summer of 2014, with camp opening by the spring of 2015.

163



Construction of staging area and 6+ miles of Ridge 
Trail climbing east from Silverado Trail near Rector 
Creek.

Skyline Park Protection
Purchase of Skyline Park from the State

Planning for open space donated by Bob and Evalyn 
Trinchero

State Parks Operate Bothe-Napa Valley State Park and  the Bale 
Grist Mill State Historic Park

Vallejo Lakes

Possible purchase of 1100 acres of surplus Vallejo 
Water District lands, of which 200 acres are located 
in Napa County

                             
The project concept has been approved by the District Board, and was positively viewed by the Veterans Home administration.  However, Veterans Home staff had been 
having difficulty figuring out what approval process is needed, because of ongoing discussions at the state level about the appropriate roles and future programs for the 
Veterans Home, and then key management staff at the Veterans Home retired in November 2010, so progress was delayed pending the filling of their vacant positions.  The 
District will restart the process when other project priorities are under control.

Spanish Valley, Crystal Flats, and Stone Corral The District took full possession of the properties on January 1, 2012. Staff met with key community leaders from Lake Berryessa Estates on February 6 and March 6, 2011.   
A public session was held April 21st at the Pope Valley Farm Center.  The District has negotiated an easement across the District's Stone Corral property to resolve one of the 
clouds on the title to this land; this easement was approval by the Board at its October meeting, and has now been finalized and recorded. Staff met with the LBEPOA Board 
many times in 2011-2013 to discuss use of the Crystal Flats and Stone Corral areas.  District staff has prepared a draft agreement betweent he District and the Association, 
which the Association has informally rejected. Negotiations have been complicated by the ongoing controversy between LBE residents and the Lake Berryessa Estates Resort 
Improvement District, even though they are not related issues. The well serving Spanish Valley was  repaired in November 2013. District staff has also contracted with Cal-
tech pump to abandon a dry well bore discovered on the property. A group of 10 boyscouts GPS'd old ranch roads and 4-wheel drive tracks on the Spanish Valley property for 
us over the weekend of April 26-27 so that we can create a map of existing road and trails.  A contract for archeologiical surveying (a required part of the CEQA process) was 
awarded to Tom Origer and Associates in March, 2014 and that work should be completed by early summer. Staff completed a preliminary survey of the Spanish Valley 
access road in late July 2012 and, while legal access to the property has been established, it does not appear that the existing road is located within the Spanish Valley Trail 
easement. In early January 2014 staff learned the affected parcels are for sale. Staff's cash offer to purchase half of the property in mid March was rejected and we have 
decided to be patient while the property owner attempts to find a better buyer (as we think it unlikely that there is one).  In February 2013 several no tresspassing signs were 
installed in response to some evidence of illegal OHV use.  The Crystal Flats sign was immediately removed and the lock on the gate removed; a more secure gate sand lock 
will be installed and the Napa County Sheriff has placed two surveilance cameras at the location.  The District is partnering with Tuleyome to investigate and come up with  the 
trail alignment connecting Spanish Valley to the Pope To Putah Trail on BLM land which is under construction by Tuleyome.  Staff has made arrangements to remove an 
abandonned trailer in Spanish Valley at no cost to the District using an abandonned vehicle program administered by the County.

Discussions between the District, the Land Trust of Napa County, the County of Solano and the Solano Land Trust indicate a common desire to work together to purchase this 
property adjacent to Skyline Park.  The City Council of the City of Vallejo has officially authorized staff to pursue surplusing of the property. The City of Vallejo has hired an 
appraiser to prepare an estimate of the property's fair market value, but this has not yet been released.  The District GM, together with the County of Solano EO, in February 
2012 each sent letters to the City of Vallejo formally expressing interest in the property and requesting notification per state law of any planned surplussing of the property. 
Sale of the property by the City has been delayed because of complications related to questions about how best to supply water to residents in Green Valley.  The Trust for 
Public Land has expressed interest in assisting with the purchase of this area. Staff from the District and its partners met with the Vallejo City Manager in April 2014; the 
surplusing process has become more complicated and the City does not anticipate any action in the near future, but meanwhile the City Manager appears open to working with 
us to figure out a mutually beneficial outcome.  Staff had a very interesting meeting with City of Vallejo water division staff and a tour of Lake Curry in late May. The Lake Curry 
property can only be described as a jewel, and the City of Vallejo would clearly like to divest it. District staff is presently exploring a broad array of options, from an agreement 
under which the City would retain title and responsibility for the water system while the District would take over land magament at the lake to outright purchase of the property 
by the District or its partners. 

Three past legislative efforts to authorize sale to the County failed due to unrelated disagreements between the state legislature and administration. Separately, the County in 
September 2009 approved a new park overlay zone and an updated Master Plan for Skyline Park. A fourth legislative effort by Assemblymember Evans in 2010, sponsored by 
Napa County and supported by the District, was approved by the legislature and signed by the Governor. The County and state General Services agreed on an appraisal 
process for determining the fair market value purchase price, the County  retained an appraiser acceptable to the State, and a draft appraisal was prepared. In late April 2012 
the state indicated they did not accept the value as determined by the appraisal and negotiations stalled. A Draft EIR was released in late September for the proposed 
expansion of the adjacent Syar Quarry. The District Board approved comments on the DEIR at it's October 2013 meeting.

The District,with assistance from the Napa Valley State Parks Association took over management of the parks on April 1, 2012.   A County permit for the pool was obtained in 
July and the pool was reopened immediately thereafter. The state completed installing 3 yurts in October 2012.  The District obtained approval in January 2013 to install an 
additional 8 yurts. Seven yurts have been installed; landings, paths and parking areas are nearly finished and ready for Fire Marshall's final inspection.  Numerous volunteer 
projects have been organized (PG&E event improving the Mill, firewood splitting, hazardous tree removal, mowing, pool cleaning, native plant garden maintenance, historic 
orchard restoration, lots of trash removal, and in September/October a footbridge on the History Trail was repaired by the St Helena Kiwanis).  A volunteer forestly 
management group has been formed and the District has acquired a boom truck and other equipment in support of their mission. Utility service accounts have been transferred 
from the state to the District. Work on an improved recycling system is nearly complete. Every septic tank in the park has been pumped clean, and sewer lines were located 
and cleared of root blockages.  Two additional failed septic tanks were discovered in March and pumped clean.  Nearly $270,000 in gifts, grants and pledges have been 
obtained to assist with improvements at the parks.  The District and State Parks have finalized an agreement regarding the "found" state money that provides up to $537,800 in 
State funds being granted to the District to cover some salaries and two capital improvement projects (replacement roofs and AC overlay to the picnic area road).  The District 
is sponsoring SB 170 (Wolk) which would exempt the mill from state food processing facility requirements so that flour from the mill can be sold as a food item; the bill has 
passed the Senate and all Assembly committees, but unfortunately in late July the Department of Public Health announced their opposition to the bill.  After meeting with DPH, 
it appears they may be willing to agree to a workable compromise; this will take time to explore, so we have made the bill a two-year bill.  Final approval of seven yurts was 
received in the last week of September 2013, and went on line with Reserve America in November 2013.  A contract to prepare architectural plans for the repair of the cabins 
was awarded in December 2013; the plans were submitted in February 2014 for State Parks approval.  In March 2014 the district was approached by several organizations 
and individuals requesting that the District consider taking over management of Robert Louis Stevenson State Park; staff is investigating what would be involved.

164



Vine Trail A Class I bicycle/pedestrian path extending from 
Calistoga to the Vallejo Ferry Terminal sponsored by 
the Vine Trail Coalition, of which the District is a 
participating member.

The District has entered into an MOU with the Vine Trail Coalition to provide assistance as requested by the Coalition in receiving funds, preparing plans and environmental 
documents, constructing and operating the trail.  The District, the Bay Area Ridge Trail, the San Francisco Bay Trail and the Vine Trail Coalition have prepared a joint Case 
Statement for the combined trail network for fundraising purposes.  The District on Febuary 5, 2010 submitted an appropriations request for FY 2011 to Senator Feinstein, and 
a similar request to Congressman Thompson on February 26, 2010 on behalf of the Vine Trail Coalition.  The District in April 2013 approved and sent a letter of support for the 
City of Calistoga's request for a grant from the Coastal Conservancy to plan the trail through Calistoga.  The Board President in early June 2014 sent a letter of support for a 
Vine Trail federal "Tiger" grant to help construct the section of trail between Yountville and Napa.  The District continues to coordinate with the Vine Trail on plans to route the 
Vine Trail through Bothe-Napa Valley State Park.  A joint Vine Trail/Ridge Trail dedication event will be held at Bothe on July 27, 2014.

Bay Area Ridge Trail Realignment
Amendment to the proposed alignment of the Bay 
Area Ridge Trail extend north to the Oat Hill Mine 
Trail

Bay/River Trail -- American Canyon to Napa Phase I
Phase One--Euclyptus Drive to Green Island Road

Berryessa Vista Acquisition

Connolly Ranch

Historic ROW Analysis
Study to determine location and status of historic 
road Rights-of-Way and whether they have value as 
non-motorized recreational trails

Linda Falls

Master Plan Development

First scheduled update to the Master Plan adopted in 
January 2009

Milliken Reservoir Trails and Picnic Area Feasibility Study
Would construct approximately 3 miles of Bay Area 
Ridge Trail plus addional feeder and loop trails, 
along with a staging and picnic area

Moore Creek Open Space Park

Napa River Ecological Reserve Improvements

Napa River Ecological Reserve Restoration

Newell Preserve Improvements
Provide on-site water supply for group campground 
for cattle 

Acquisition of 673 acres in the Moore Creek Watershed completed in December 2008.  

Purchase of 224 acres from the Land Trust of Napa County for use as a public park completed in early 2008 using State Prop 12 funds.

Oat Hill Mine Trail

Completed Projects

Constructionof approximately 5 miles of Class I bicycle and pedestrian path in the vicinity of American Canyon along the Napa River was completed in April 2012, in 
partnership with the City of American Canyon, Department of Fish and Game and Napa Vallejo Waste Management Authority.  A formal opening ceremony was held June 2, 
2012.

Master Plan Update Board adhoc committee appointed.  Methodology for doing update has been agreed upon.  Project was delayed due to competing demands on staff time (primarily the effort to 
keep Napa's state parks from closing.  A draft update has been prepared by staff working with the Board ad hoc committee for the Master Plan update, and released by the 
Board at the April 9, 2012 meeting for public comment. The plan update was adopted by the Board at its June 2012 meeting.

The feasibility study has been completed, and accepted by the Board of Directors.  The Napa City Council in November, 2009 approved city staff recommendation to hold off 
on the Miliken Reservoir trails project until the Hennessey trail project is up and running.

The Master Plan for 2008-2013 was approved in January 2009

Construction of patio, restrooms and cooking facilities completed in 2008 using State Prop 12 funds.

The Oat Hill Mine Trail was formally opened in May 0f 2008, after a major volunteer work party doing signage installation, brush removal and erosion control.

This multi-year project resulted in the removal of the bulk of the invasive teasel that had taken over the 5 acre meadow at the entrance to the Reserve, and the construction of a short native plant interpretive trail.  Work was done by 
volunteers, students, and paid contractors.  In doing this work, several thousand students received a day of environmental education about native and invasive plants and riparian ecology.

As part of the arrangement with the land trust on the District's purchase of Berryessa Vista, the land trust was willing to use some of the proceeds from the transaction to fund a 
well pump and distribution system at the Preserve.  However, the first well drilled by the City of American Canyon came up dry.  The City has dropped plans for digging any 
more test wells.

Parking area paved, and rock barrier installed to control vehicular access in 2007.  Trash enclosure constructed and entry signs restored by volunteers in 2008. Deteriorated kiosk removed in 2008.   The District in July 2008 
assumed the County's role in managing the preserve under the joint management agreement with DFG.  A new maintenance contract with the non-profit organization Options 3 was started in January 2009.  The old deteriorated 
information kiosk, which had become a serious eyesore, was removed in November 2008.

Napa River Flood Control Easement

Conservation easement accepted in spring 2008 from Land Trust of Napa County to provide additional protection for this 39 acre property, which is owned by the land trust

In December of 2012 the Bay Area Ridge Trail Council approved the proposed realignment of the Ridge Trail through Napa County as requested by the District.

Staff has completed a comprehensive review of historic rights-of-way, and is now focusing attention on those which have greatest potential.

Conservation easement accepted by District in 2007 to facilitate Flood District project and grant funding

165



River to Ridge Trail Enhancements

River to Ridge Trail

Lot line adjustment to legalize River to Ridge Trail as 
constructed (it curently encroaches on private 

   
River to Ridge Trail Entrace Enhancements

River to Ridge Trail

Correct drainage problems to trail can be used year-
round.

Two volunteer work weekends in March and April and two more in May of 2010 were organized by the District to clear brush, improve drainage, and surface about 300 feet of 
the trail with quarry fines to control problems with mud.  Volunteers completed additonal work in August 2011.

Skyline Park Road and Trail Improvements 

Skyline Park Concessionaire Agreement Renewal

Skyline Park Trail Improvements

Major volunteer event to reroute and repair trails

Skyline Park Facility Improvements
Partner-sponsored improvement include a second 
greenhouse and a covered equestrian arena.

South Napa Wetlands Habitat Area
Transfer to the District those wetlands owned by the 
Napa County flood control district between the Napa 
River, Highway 29 and Newport Drive for use as 
habitat and nature-based recreation.

State Parks Assume management of Bothe-Napa Valley State 
Park and keep it and the Bale Grist Mill open

Donation of 3,400 acres of open space to the District 
by Bob and Evalyn Trinchero

Wild Lake Ranch
Assist land trust with planning and possible joint 
management of trails, camping and picnic areas.

The proposals for a second greenhouse and a covered arena  were approved by the Department of General Services and by the County Board of Supervisors.   The sponsors 
of these projects are now raising funds for implementation. 

A new information kiosk was installed at the entrance in December 2008 as part of a Boy Scout project.  Several Live Oak seedlings were donated by CNPS and have been planted at the entrance to improve its appearance.  

Deeds accomplishing the adjustment in property boundaries between Syar and the State have been recorded.  

District staff negotiated renewal of concessionaire agreement on behalf of the County.  The renewal involved changes to the fee schedule and amendments to and approval of subagreements with three non-profit partner 
oranizations.

Erosion control work on Lake Marie Road, and paving of campground loop road, completed in 2007 using State Prop 12 funds.  

Installation of animal silouettes along the entryway fence illustrating the types of birds and mammals that can be found in the area completed by Eagle Scout candidate in 2008.  In November 2008 five Valley Oak trees were 
planted at the Highway 221 entrance to the trail with the assistance of a volunteer from CNPS.  

Staff  worked with SPCA and V-O-CAL to sponsor a weekend work party on October 15-17, 2010.  Approximately 110 volunteers worked to reroute and repair trails 
experiencing serious erosion problems.  SPCA is donating $1,000 toward expenses.

The District took over operations of the parks on April 1, 2012, and have a 5 year agreement with the State to continue operating the parks.

The District participated in the development of a strategic plan for the property, together with other public lands in the area, that was led by the Land Trust of Napa County.  
The land trust has decided, at least for the near term, to manage the Wildlake-Duff property itself.

Trichero Open Space Acquisition The donation was completed on December 29, 2010.  A related granting of an access easement to the Lake Berryessa Resort Improvement District was completed in mid-
January 2011.  

Transfer was approved in concept by the flood control district, and Park District staff prepared the first draft of a transfer agreement.  Subsequently, attorney's for the flood 
district concluded it would be better from their perspective for the flood district to retain ownership of the property, due to their ongoing maintenance obligations.

166


	Agenda 140612
	Agenda Item 3 a draft budget for FY 2014-15 
	Agenda Item 3.a draft budget FY 2014-15 attachment 1
	Agenda Item 3.b Berryessa North End ISND staff report
	Agenda Item 3.b Berryessa North End Trail Attachments
	North Shore Trail Attachments1
	North Shore Trail Attachments2
	North Shore Trail Attachments
	1
	2
	3
	4


	Agenda Item 4.a Minutes 140512
	Agenda Item 4.b Park Report - May
	Agenda Item 4.c  RLS proposal 
	Agenda Item 4.c attachment 1 RLS proposal 140603
	Agenda Item 4.c attachment 2 RLS budget draft 140614
	Sheet1

	Agenda Item 4.d parks forward memo 
	Agenda Item 4.D parks forward report attachment 1
	Report Recommendations
	Some Additional Thoughts

	Agenda Item 4.E  POSDAC 
	Agenda Item 4.F Staff Reportable Actions
	Agenda Item 4.F staff reportable actions attachment 1 GLS7505_1289507
	Agenda Item 4.G Project Status Report 140609
	Sheet1




